ORBAY
COUNCIL iy

Friday, 17 February 2017
/ DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE \

A meeting of Development Management Committee will be held on
Monday, 27 February 2017

commencing at 5.30 pm

The meeting will be held in the Rosetor Room at the
K Riviera International Conference Centre, Chestnut Drive, Torquay

Members of the Committee

Councillor Kingscote (Chairman)

Councillor Barnby Councillor Robson

Councillor Cunningham Councillor Stringer

Councillor Darling (S) Councillor Winfield

Councillor Morey Councillor Tolchard

A prosperous and healthy Torbay

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or
language please contact:
Amanda Coote, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR
01803 207087
Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
www.torbay.gov.uk

(1)




(a)

(b)

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Apologies for absence

To receive apologies for absence, including notifications of any
changes to the membership of the Committee.

Declarations of Interests

To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of

items on this agenda

For reference: Having declared their non pecuniary interest
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the
matter in question. A completed disclosure of interests form should
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect

of items on this agenda

For reference: Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the
item. However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter. A
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the

AGENDA

Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

(Please Note: If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.)

Urgent Items

To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent.

Torquay Pavilion, Marina Car Park and Office and adjoining
land, Vaughan Parade, Torquay - P/2015/0961/MPA

Change of use and restoration of Pavilion to form hotel reception
and spa including restaurant, bars and function rooms.
Construction of 4/5 storey 60 bed hotel, 5 and 11 storey block of 43
residential apartments, with ground floor restaurant and retail uses
adjacent to harbour. Link between Pavilion and new hotel.
Construction of new harbour walkway, provision of 289 car parking
places including 74 spaces on Cary Green (42 seasonal; 32 for
hotel). Construction of Marina Office and berth holder facilities and
erection of Dock masters Office and associated landscaping

(proposal revised 5 July 2016).

(2)

(Pages 4 - 79)



Torquay Pavilion, Marina Car Park and office and adjoining (Pages 80 - 86)
land, Vaughan Parade, Torquay - 2015/0962/LB

Refurbishment of building including repairs to corroded structure

and works to prevent water penetration. Internal and external works

to listed Pavilion to enable use as hotel foyer, including function

rooms, bars, restaurant and spa. Construction of linked access from

first floor level to proposed waterfront hotel (proposal revised 5 July

2016).

Note
An audio recording of this meeting will normally be available at

www.torbay.gov.uk within 48 hours.

®3)


http://www.torbay.gov.uk/

Agenda Iltem 4

Application Number Site Address

P/2015/0961 Torquay Pavilion And Marina Car Park And
Office And Adjoining Land
Vaughan Parade

Torquay
TQ2 5EL
Case Officer Ward
Mrs Ruth Robinson Tormohun

Description
Change of use and restoration of Pavilion to form hotel reception and spa including

restaurant, bars and function rooms. Construction of 4/5 storey 60 bed hotel, 5 and 11
storey block of 43 residential apartments, with ground floor restaurant and retail uses
adjacent to harbour. Link between Pavilion and new hotel. Construction of new harbour
walkway, provision of 289 car parking places including 74 spaces on Cary Green (42
seasonal; 32 for hotel). Construction of Marina Office and berth holder facilities and
erection of Dock masters Office and associated landscaping (proposal revised 5 July
2016)

Executive Summary/Key Qutcomes

The application site flanks the west side of the Inner Harbour and comprises the existing
MDL car park and associated Marina offices, the Pavilion and includes Cary Green and
adjacent areas of public realm.

It is a site of particular significance in heritage terms due to its prominence within the
Torquay Harbour Conservation Area and its relationship to nearby listed buildings and
the Grade Il Registered Princess Gardens.

Discussions on the future development of this site have been ongoing for many years.
The need to achieve regeneration of Torquay Harbour, particularly from tourism related
uses, was highlighted in the now superseded Local Plan, this site was identified as a
development site in the Draft Torquay Harbour Action Area Plan (2006), in the Mayoral
Vision (2008) and now in the recently adopted Torquay Local Plan (2012-30) and in the
Town Centre Master Plan.

Central to that designation is an ambition to secure the restoration of the Pavilion; a
grade Il listed building which suffers inherent structural problems and the redevelopment
of the existing car park which forms an unattractive edge to the harbour, to create a
catalyst for regeneration. The contribution that the development of this site could make
to regeneration of the harbour side and town centre is significant.

Two planning applications (with accompanying listed building applications) have been

submitted to the LPA. The first application, P/2014/0282 submitted in 2014 now
comprises a 14 storey tower block and is as yet undetermined.

Page 4



The second application, submitted in 2015 provides for a lower rise solution and arose
as a response to the scale of objection to the original application.

Both options include a 60 bed hotel, (part of the ‘higher end’ Harbour Hotel Group). This
Is to be located to the northern end of the site adjacent to Vaughan Parade on the
harbour side using the Pavilion as ‘a front of house’, including spa, bars and restaurants
with a ‘bedroom bridge’ linking the two.

Commercial floor space occupies the entire ground floor of the harbour side building
opening up onto a new waterside walkway, residential accommodation in the form of
either 43 or 45 flats occupies the balance of the site. Car parking is largely
accommodated within the retained MDL car park with hotel and seasonal/ overspill
proposed for Cary Green.

An economic appraisal submitted to support the application estimates that construction
costs are in the order of £32m, the equivalent of 20 FTE jobs will be created though
construction of the building, the operation of the hotel will create around 98 FTE jobs
averaged over the year with 58 FTE jobs estimated to be generated by the operation of
the bars and restaurants.

The application which is the subject of this report is a revision to the 2015 application
and involves a building which increases from four storeys adjacent to Vaughan Parade
to five storeys in the middle section of the building reaching eleven storeys at the most
southern end of the site overlooking Fish Quay. It includes 69 car parking spaces on a
‘remodelled’ Cary Green.

It is principally these two aspects of the scheme, the height and size of the building and
the loss of Cary Green to car parking that are at the heart of the significant level of
objections from local residents and statutory consultees alike.

The evolving proposals for this site have been scrutinised throughout by the Councils
Design Review Panel who favour a ‘tall and elegant’ solution for the site and Historic
England who prefer a scheme that does not impose such a tall building on the harbour.

This revision has sought to fuse the most successful elements of both alternative
approaches. The options have all been informed by appraisals of the impact on the
historic environment and on views in and out of the site.

The size of the development is driven by the need to fund the restoration of the Pavilion
(with an anticipated repair cost of £2.7m) and to deliver a new 4* hotel on the site which
is not in itself viable.

A hotel use would be welcome given the sites location in a Core Tourism Investment
Area and is beneficial from an economic point of view.

It is argued that a ‘subsidy’ in the form of this number of high value flats is necessary for

Page 5



delivery.

This position has been examined via an Independent Viability Assessment. The primary
purpose of this is to understand whether the scale of residential development proposed
is necessary to ensure delivery of the overall proposal. It is also useful to determine
whether the scheme can afford to meet S106 requirements in relation to Affordable
Housing and other community infrastructure contributions and whether it has the
capacity to deliver wider regeneration aspirations in terms of an exemplar building and
appropriate public realm enhancements.

This assessment confirms that this level of development is needed to deliver a hotel led
scheme on the site. It identified however, a greater profit margin than the applicant’s
viability study allowed for and whilst this wasn’t sufficient to allow any meaningful
reduction in the scale and bulk of the proposed building it did confirm that the scheme
could afford to deliver a much improved range of public realm improvements that would
help meet Local Plan regeneration objectives.

The applicant initially disputed this, but the scale, range and quality of public realm
improvements has been substantially upgraded in recent weeks.

The primary reason for the delay in reaching a determination on the proposals for this
site has been attempts to try and find the best way of arranging this rather challenging
amount of floor space on the site in a way that minimises harm and to ensure that the
quality of the scheme is such that it achieves a transformative scale of regeneration.

This most recent revision is the ‘best fit’ that has been achieved in terms of its basic
form and relationship to the surrounding area and it does now deliver a more ‘place
making’ scale of regeneration.

In policy terms, the decision maker’s prime consideration and legal duty is to take fully
into account the duty to ‘preserve and enhance’ the character of the Conservation Area
and listed buildings.

S 66 and S 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
impose a duty on LPAs to give considerable weight and importance to the desirability of
preserving the settings of listed buildings and preserving or enhancing the character of
Conservation Areas. There is a strong presumption against planning permission being
granted in the event of there being harm arising from development. This has to be the
first consideration.

The NPPF however does allow some discretion and harm, particularly ‘less than
substantial harm’ can be acceptable if there are defined public benefits.

Much of the ‘harm’ is driven by the inclusion of the hotel as its low value means a
significant level of development is needed to pay for it. It is therefore incumbent on the
decision maker to consider whether those public benefits can be delivered in a way that
reduces the identified harm on the historic environment. An option tested in the IVA

Page 6



involved deleting the hotel in favour of higher value flats which resulted in a far smaller
building.

In a nutshell, is the hotel ‘worth’ the level of harm?

In order to fully evaluate the implications of this development, in terms of the balance
between harm and benefit, this report seeks to explain:

Why this amount of development is needed.

What impact the scheme has on the historic environment.

Whether the scheme is ‘good enough’ to drive quality regeneration.

What the public benefits are, whether they are of a scale that will mitigate for the
harm and whether they can be guaranteed.

¢ Whether the identified benefits could be delivered in a way that reduced the level
of harm as required by the broad thrust of Historic England’s enabling guidance.

Critical to this assessment is the scale of harm and the quality of the scheme. This is a
key issue and is essentially a matter of judgment. Historic England’s response confirm
that this harm is ‘less than substantial’ although still significant. The Victorian Society,
the Garden History Society and the Theatres Trust all consider the scheme to be of a
substantial level of harm. Improvements to the quality of the building and to the public
realm have been recently secured which have to be further weighed in the balance.

Relevant to considerations of the ‘balance’ between harm and public benefit is the wider
economic context. Recent figures relating to increased poverty levels and deprivation in
Torbay reinforce the need to put economic growth high up the agenda. National and
local planning guidance promotes economic growth as a priority. Investment to the Bay
needs to be encouraged if the economy is to flourish and ultimately that can only be
achieved if viable schemes are encouraged and long established development sites
such as this are bought forward.

The submitted economic impact report provides a best practice assessment of these
benefits in terms of jobs created and wider improvements in the local economy.

In view of the centrality of the economic arguments, the LPA has commissioned its own
review of the findings of this report. This confirms that despite some discrepancies in
methodology, the assumptions about the overall economic benefit are sound.

The same balance of costs and benefits needs to be applied to the loss of Cary Green.
This is as big an issue to local people as the concern about the size of the proposed
buildings and the impact on the historic environment. The report explains that the design
of this space has moved on from a tarmacked fenced car park to a more shared public
space and recent improvements to its design and management have helped maximise
public use and deliver a space of some quality that will create a more appropriate setting
to the adjacent listed buildings.

Page 7



The question is whether the recent improvements to the proposed building, to the scale
and quality of the public realm and to the treatment of Cary Green are good enough to
offset some of the harm on the historic environment.

The following broad conclusions are drawn from an assessment of the scheme against
the relevant policy guidelines.

¢ The level of residential floor space included in the scheme is shown to be broadly
necessary for delivery of the hotel and restoration of the Pavilion and this has
been confirmed via an IVA (Independent Viability Assessment)

e There will be a significant level of harm to the character of the Conservation Area,
on the setting of listed buildings and on the adjacent Registered Garden,

e The quality of the scheme in terms of the detailed appearance of the building,
wider public realm improvements and the delivery of place making regeneration
has been recently been improved which to some degree offsets the scale of
harm.

e The benefits are delivery of a restored Pavilion and for a use that will secure its
long term future, the provision of a more active and attractive edge to the harbour
as a result of the new walkway and proposed restaurants and bars and the
provision of jobs and associated spin off economic benefits.

e The inclusion of flats in place of the hotel would deliver a smaller building and one
that could positively enhance the character of the Conservation Area and the
settings of adjacent listed buildings and Gardens but it would deliver fewer jobs,
reduced economic benefits and although funding would be secured to refurbish
the Pavilion it would not guarantee it a secure future use and the increased delay
in achieving essential repairs to the listed building would be a concern.

The harm v benefits argument is very finely balanced and reflects priorities about
whether the delivery of a hotel of this quality with all its attendant benefits in terms of
jobs and economic stimulus outweighs the demonstrable harm to the historic
environment and the character and visual amenity of the area.

It also needs to be weighed in the balance that alternative options which didn’t include
the financial burden of a hotel could deliver a more sympathetic scheme albeit with
reduced job generation and lack of certainty about the long term future of the Pavilion.
This is a very difficult judgement call. There is clear concern about the scale of harm on
the historic environment. However, the Bay faces serious economic difficulties and
increasing levels of deprivation which reinforce the need to encourage tourism,
economic growth and regeneration.

This application involves delivery of a high end hotel which would be a real coup for the
Bay. It would increase visitor numbers and benefit existing businesses. Should the
‘public benefit’ of greater economic vitality and a secure future for the Pavilion should be
given greater weight?

The need for an exemplar scheme and a place making scale of regeneration to help

Page 8



mitigate the scale of harm is critical. Throughout the lengthy discussions on the site
officers have held the line in terms of demanding a better building and a better setting to
help offset the harm to the historic environment. The recent revisions to the design of
the building and the improvements to the public realm help towards meeting those
concerns.

In terms of opting for a revised scheme that deleted the hotel, whilst this would deliver a
smaller building there is no certainty that such an option would be taken up. Further it
would not deliver the same scale of economic benefit, it would introduce further delay in
resolving the future of the Pavilion and it would not secure such a robust long term
future use for this building.

Officers therefore are now of the view that on balance, the significant harm to the
historic environment is just outweighed by the overall public benefits of the scheme and
consider that the application should be approved subject to a s106 agreement, revised
plans and appropriate conditions as detailed below.

However, it is entirely legitimate to reach the judgement that the public benefit of the
proposal does not outweigh the clear presumption against planning permission being
granted and that greater weight should be given to the preservation and enhancement of
the historic environment.

For that reason, the recommendation below includes firstly the officers ‘on balance’ view
and secondly a reason for refusal of planning permission should Members take the view
that the harm to the historic environment is such that it is not outweighed by the public
benefits of the scheme.

Recommendation

On balance, it is the recommendation of Officers that planning permission should be
granted for the proposal subject to clarification of the impact of ‘shadowing’ on the
amenity of public spaces, revised plans/clarification of detailed design matters relating
to:

e Opportunities for mitigating the impact of the lift shafts.

e Confirmation that the balconies will be constructed as a continuous curve.

e Detail in relation to the harbour walkway and strategy for relocating the traditional
railings and form and extent of new railing detail.

¢ Inclusion of extended resurfacing between Offshore and the stone setts adjacent
to the northern elevation of the hotel building.

e External plant in relation to listed building.

¢ And to the conclusion of a S106 agreement at the applicants expense to secure
the following matters and to conditions as detailed below.

¢ In terms of the S106 agreement:

e To secure deferred contributions towards future public realm enhancements as
defined in the body of the report namely re-surfacing of Fish Quay, an extension
of the granite paving adjacent to SoHo to an agreed specification and/or a

Page 9



contribution of £100,000 towards removal and treatment of the Ziggurat or an
alternative key public realm master plan proposal. The amount of deferred
contributions to be assessed and paid in stages and calculated on the basis of a
50:50 split between the developer and the Council of any increase in income
generated from the site over that predicted in the IVA. The contribution to be
assessed either in relation to uplift in projected sales values of the residential
units or such other method agreed with the applicant (e.g. open book accounting
of the entire scheme) Costs/values to be used shall be based on the Sauvills
Supplementary Viability Report dated 26th July 2016.

The maximum deferred contribution will equivalent to the full amount of off-site
Affordable Housing and Sustainable Development Contributions that would ordinarily be
payable in accordance with the adopted SPD after deducting any contributions/costs
paid by the developer towards improvements to the public realm.

e To ensure occupation of the hotel by the applicant (or such other suitably-
qualified hotel operator as shall be agreed)

e A commitment, in the operation of the hotel, to procurement of local goods and
services as described in the HJA report

e a commitment to use of local labour both during the construction of the
development and in the ongoing operation of the hotel

e To secure a financial contribution of £30,000 towards enhancements to Princess
Gardens.

e To secure the terms of the car parking strategy, public access to Cary Green and
agreement for public use of eastern part Cary Green for markets/events for a
minimum of 28 days in any September — May period, consent not to be
unreasonably withheld by the developer, calculation of fees for use to be agreed.

e To secure an annual monitoring contribution towards ensuring that Cary Green is
used and managed in accordance with the agreed car parking strategy and that
the hotel car park is not ‘bank parked’ as explained in the body of the report.

e To secure modelling of the mini roundabout and implementation of any highway
works deemed necessary via a S278 Notice prior to any occupation.

e Performance bond (if required)

However, if Members are minded to refuse the application, due to concerns about the
impact of the proposal on the character of the Conservation Area and on the setting of
adjacent listed buildings, it is suggested that the following reflects the key reasons why
the scheme could be judged to fail when considered against national and local plan
guidance.

As a consequence of its size, height and design, the development would be harmful to
the setting and significance of key listed buildings, to the setting and significance of the
Registered Princess Gardens and to the character and appearance of the Torquay
Harbour Conservation Area. The development would harm key public views of listed
buildings, eroding their significance in the townscape and will act in a way to limit views
between the harbour, the Pavilion and the Registered Park and Garden to their

Page 10



detriment. The public benefits included in the scheme comprising the restoration of the
Pavilion, delivery of a hotel with attendant economic benefits and provision of new
dwellings are, on balance, not sufficient to outweigh the presumption against approval
embodied in s66 and 72 of the 1990 Act As such the scheme is contrary to paragraphs
133 and 134 of the NPPF and policies SS10 and HE1 of the adopted Local Plan 2012-
2030.

Statutory Determination Period

The target date for a decision to be made on this application was January 16 2016. The
applicant has agreed to an extension of time for the determination of the application.
Further time has been needed to negotiate a scheme that accords with the Councils
policies and national guidance on this prominent and important site.

Site Details

The application site flanks the west side of the Inner Harbour and comprises the existing
MDL car park and associated Marina offices, the Pavilion and includes Cary Green and
adjacent areas of public realm.

It is a site of particular significance in heritage terms due to its prominence within the
Torquay Harbour Conservation Area and its relationship to nearby listed buildings and
the Grade Il Registered Princess Gardens.

The Pavilion is Grade Il listed, 3-15 Vaughan Parade, the adjacent terrace is Grade Il
listed as is the Cary Estate Office on Palk Street and 1 Palk Street which overlook Cary
Green. The quay walls and the Fish Quay which is to the immediate south of the
application site are also Grade Il listed.

The Grade 1 listed St Johns Church sits on the nearby hillside which forms backdrop to
the harbour and overlooks the site. Part of the application site lies within Princess
Gardens, a Grade Il entry in the Register of Parks and Gardens. The registered Garden
extends to the west of the application site and includes two further (Grade II) listed
structures, the Fountain and the War Memorial.

Currently the MDL car park site comprises a semi basement and top deck car park
providing 235 car parking spaces for the associated Marina. The lower level is normally
used exclusively by MDL berthholders with the upper deck often used for public pay and
display purposes.

The car park forms the western edge of the harbour walkway and includes at the
northern end, retail and catering outlets with associated seating looking out over the
inner harbour. It otherwise presents an inactive frontage to the harbour.

The Pavilion, constructed as a theatre in 1911, has been vacant for several years having
previously been in use as a small specialised retail outlet and is now in a very poor
structural condition. This largely arises due to corrosion of the innovative steel frame
used in its construction and is a common problem in other similar buildings of this era.

Page 11



Cary Green, a public open space, was laid out in its current form following the
construction of the Fleet Walk Shopping Centre in the 1980’s comprising a mix of hard
and soft landscaping. It is overlooked on three sides by listed buildings, The Pavilion to
the south, the Cary Estate Office and 1 Palk Street to the north and 3-15 Vaughn
Parade to the east. To the north west of the open space lies the Ziggurat, a rather
unappealing means of achieving pedestrian and disabled access from Fleet Walk Car
Park to the sea front which dominates this space. There is a detached single storey
building with a pitched roof on the south side of Cary Green in use as a taxi office.

The site is located within the defined town centre and adjacent to the harbour with high
levels of pedestrian and vehicular traffic. It is very prominent within the townscape both
in short and long distance views.

Detailed Proposals

By way of background, two planning applications (with accompanying listed building
applications) have been submitted to the LPA for development of this site. They all
include a 60 bed hotel, commercial floor space, residential accommodation in the form
of either 43 or 45 flats and parking on Cary Green.

These are P/2014/0282 registered in June 2014 and P/2015/0961 registered in October
2015.

There were subsequently two revisions to P/2014/0282 both of which included a 14
storey tower block to accommodate the residential flats. The most recent of these
revisions is referred to as the ‘Tower scheme’ and is still to be determined.

P/2015/0961 originally included a 10 storey tower with the displaced accommodation
included in a higher six storey middle section of building and is referred to as the
‘Stepped scheme’.

This proposal has been superseded by a further revision comprising an 11 storey tower
with the higher middle section reduced to five storeys.

It is this version of P/2015/0961, which is the subject of this report. It is referred to as the
‘revised stepped scheme’.

This revision involves the refurbishment of the Pavilion and a change of use to provide a
‘front of house’ facility for a new 60 bed hotel to be constructed on the harbourside. This
includes ‘public’ uses such as bars, restaurants, a spa and function rooms as well as
reception facilities for the hotel. The two are linked by an elevated and enclosed
walkway with hotel bedrooms bordering both sides of the structure.

The scheme includes the construction of 43 2 and 3 bed flats in a building which
increases from four storeys adjacent to Vaughan Parade to eleven storeys at the most
southern end of the site and provides for restaurant uses on the ground floor with
external terraces and a new public walkway along the harbourside.

Page 12



43 car parking spaces to serve the residential flats are included in the existing MDL car
park.

The scheme originally included 74 car parking spaces on Cary Green with 32 spaces to
serve the hotel and 42 ‘replacement’ spaces for MDL. This has recently reduced to 69
spaces.

There is a sister listed building application P/2015/0962 which relates to the detail of the
external and internal alterations to the Pavilion and Quay wall. This will be considered
later in the agenda.

The Council is the freeholder of the whole site and MDL have a long lease on the
Pavilion building and the car park site. The applicant has a lease from the Council in
respect of Cary Green (excluding the site of the taxi office) and incidental areas of public
realm required to allow the development to proceed.

Summary Of Consultation Responses

It is to be noted that the comments below are summaries of the responses received to
consultation and Members are urged to read the full transcripts which are available on
line and have been circulated with the report.

Historic England: They confirm their strong opposition to the fourteen storey tower
included in P/2014/0282 and recognise that the shorter scheme (the revised stepped
scheme) now under consideration has undergone considerable design revisions some
of which would improve the relationship with the historic environment. However they still
consider that the taller element of the proposed building included in this application
would have an adverse impact on the designated heritage assets. The restoration of the
Pavilion is described as a significant heritage benefit along with other less substantial
heritage benefits arising from the proposal such as the removal of the inactive and blank
edge to the existing car park. The potential of this site to be a catalyst for regeneration of
the harbour and to enhance the appearance and vitality of the harbour is also
recognised but they stress that it is not their role but the LPAs to consider wider
economic/regeneration consequences.

The response recognises the positive improvements to the design achieved in the latest
revision but they do not consider that these amendments ‘would negate the impact of
the proposed tall building’ considering that the assertive presence of a tower
immediately to the right of the Pavilion when viewed from Princess Gardens would
cause considerable harm to its setting.

It is also thought that the height of the Tower would harm the setting of the Grade | St
Johns Church through challenging its visual primacy in the townscape and result in the
listed Grade Il Mallock clock tower being read against a backdrop of development rather
than open sky.

The open character of the harbour would also be harmed by the proposed buildings
obscuring views from the Strand and Torwood Street across the Bay. Similarly concern

Page 13



is expressed at the impact the tall building would have on views from the harbourside to
surrounding Conservation Areas. They raise no objection to the loss of Cary Green.

The impact of the tall building is however in their opinion exacerbated by the
‘challenging design of its upper levels and roof. The letter also refers to HE Advice
Note 4 ‘Tall Buildings’ which they comment should be taken into account in determining
the proposal.

In conclusion, HE considers that harm will accrue to the setting and significance of the
Pavilion and the character and appearance of the Conservation Area. The proposal
would cause some harm to the setting of the Grade | listed church and some harm to the
Mallock Clock Tower, the visual connection between Princess Gardens and Vane Hill
would be diminished by the introduction of a ‘built form’ causing some modest harm to
the setting of the Grade Il registered gardens. The scale of harm is defined as less than
substantial although still ‘significant’. HE further advises that the LPA needs to be
confident that it has been clearly and convincingly demonstrated by the applicant that
the perceived wider public benefits offered by the proposals cannot be delivered by a
means that reduces the harm identified.

Victorian Society: They confirm continued objection to the scheme and have
resubmitted their previous objections. They describe the inclusion of a tall building ‘in
perhaps the most sensitive location in Torquay’ as a ‘disaster for the character of the
town worse than past planning mistakes’. In their opinion the height of the tower is
immaterial it is simply not suited to this site and they describe Torquay waterfront being
treated like a piece of recently reclaimed land in Dubai rather than land reclaimed for
public benefit. They cite substantial harm to the Conservation Area arising from the
height and scale of the development and are also critical of the loss of Cary Green
regarding it as an important public space and a quintessential feature of Victorian resort
town planning questioning why its loss is necessary when Fleet Walk car park is a
matter of metres away. They do not consider that the benefits of restoring the Pavilion
are outweighed by the harm the development would cause and urge that these
applications are refused or referred to the Secretary of State for determination if the
Council is minded to approve.

Devon Garden Trust: Object in the strongest possible terms to this application
considering that the design is ‘mediocre in terms of design scale and massing resulting
in a form of development which would be totally inappropriate when seen from Princess
Gardens looking towards the Pavilion’. It is suggested that the design of Abbey Sands is
‘most successful and enhances the experience of the seafront and promenade’ and an
equally simple approach would work better here. They remain convinced that the site is
not capable of accommodating the large amount of development proposed and that the
brief for the site needs to be radically reconsidered and alternative funding sought for
the restoration of the Pavilion.

Theatre Trust: Is keen to find a new and sustainable use for the former theatre. They

describe it as a highly significant seaside building and despite past alterations one that
is remarkably well preserved. The proposals in the main are supported but they express

Page 14



concern about the impact of warm humid air from the pool and spa on the stability of the
plasterwork immediately above the pool area. They are anxious to ensure that the height
of the former auditorium is retained as any loss would be detrimental to the significance
of the building. They urge the central void to be enlarged and question the location of
the function rooms doors and dias which do not appear to match up with the location of
the stairs on the first floor plan. The linked access between the two buildings is not liked
and they would prefer the complete separation of the two uses along with review of the
car park being retained in its current form which detracts from the appearance of the
building. Whilst outside their remit they comment that the tall building proposed in all
revisions would affect the setting of Princess Gardens and the Pavilion and that the
proposed use of Cary Green would have a negative impact on it setting and it should be
retained as parkland. It is requested that if permission is granted that a full update and
photographic record is made of all changes to the building.

Design Review Panel: The various proposals for the site have been reviewed by DRP
on no less than seven occasions. The currently undetermined Tower scheme and the
superseded Stepped scheme were most recently reviewed at its meeting on the 14th
August 2015. The panels view was that a more slender and more elegant tower (such
as is included in the current Tower revision) represented the most appropriate way of
accommodating the scale of development required by the Developer on this sensitive
site. There were a number of detailed design points they felt should be addressed to be
confirm quality and to demonstrate ‘delight’ and a lighter seaside architecture.

In respect of the original Stepped scheme, the architectural treatment was described as
weak, lacking in integrity, less elegant, lumpen and unlikely to ‘exhibit the
national/international award winning design quality previously urged for this incredibly
important site’. A number of specific design concerns were detailed namely the
increased height of the central section which disturbed the reading of the northern arm
of the building, the lack of visual empathy with nearby historic terraces, exposed service
cores and other flank/secondary elevations which turned their back to the town.

This critique strongly informed the design approach taken in evolving the revised lower
rise stepped scheme currently for consideration.

Conservation Officer: Raises serious concerns about the impact of the scheme on the
historic environment particularly the height of the development and the inclusion of the
fifth storey on the terrace range which he considers seriously impacts on the views of
the Pavilion from Princess Gardens. He draws attention to the importance of views from
Princess Gardens of the roofscape and cupolas of the Pavilion against the wooded
backdrop of the eastern harbour side which are masked by the scale of the four/five
storey building. A similar impact is experienced in views from the west which divorces
the harbour side from views of the Pavilion. He questions whether the public benefit of
restoring this unique listed building is outweighed by the significant harm.

Strategic Transport/Highways: Offer no overall objection to the proposal in terms of

traffic generation subject to the modelling of the roundabout, review of TRICS data and
implementation of minor highway works which can be carried out via a S278 Notice.

Page 15



The main concern is the lack of justification for use of Cary Green for car parking given
the relevant local plan policy which seeks to minimise car parking in town centres. The
lack of provision for disabled drivers, electric charging points and cyclists is raised as an
issue. The means of connecting to cycling networks should be investigated. Highway
cycling and pedestrian improvements as highlighted in the TA should be secured to
overcome the identified conflicts. The Travel Plan is regarded as inadequate and should
aim for a 30% target. Tracking for larger service vehicles should be carried out to ensure
that the site is fully accessible.

Principal Natural Environment Officer: Has reviewed the value of Cary Green as a
public open space in light of this proposal and also as part of a wider review to consider
efficiency savings. This has identified that Cary Green is not considered a ‘destination
space’ but more of a ‘transition space’ unlike nearby Princess Gardens which has a
broader role and function. He raises no objection to the removal of the existing planting
and considers the large Palms could be relocated for use elsewhere. He considers the
water feature to be of little value compared to the Princess garden fountain although
some provision for a more modern water feature would be an attractive component of
the new design. He supports the use of the space for events and markets and considers
its use for such purposes would be preferable to the continued use of Princess Gardens
and the Promenade but it needs to be properly designed to ensure a successful
outcome such as lighting, seating and a more robust and visually appropriate surface
treatment. The use of materials such as granite setts and paving to link with the palette
used at Abbey Sands, along the Promenade and in the Town Centre would be more
appropriate. More information is required with regard to the species of trees and their
future maintenance.

Arboricultural Officer: Does not raise any specific objection to the loss of planting on
Cary Green. He considers the replacement planting to be appropriate but would prefer
to see larger specimens along the road side to tie in with the existing plane trees on
Torbay Road. He considers that more detail is required in relation to tree pits and the
species of trees should perhaps be given more consideration.

Landscape/Green Infrastructure: Considers that the detail of soft landscape plans
should be secured by condition with clear management regimes. It is considered that the
loss of Cary Green should be compensated by enhancements to Princess Gardens.

Local Access Forum: Object to the loss of Cary Green and consider that use of nearby
facilities should be given greater consideration.

Environment Agency: Raises no objection subject to the scheme being implemented in
accordance with the submitted FRA

Natural England: Raise no objection to the scheme bearing in mind its relationship to
the Marine SAC subject to a Construction Management Plan being in place which can
be secured by condition.

Drainage Engineer: Raises no objection subject to the scheme being implemented in

Page 16



accordance with the submitted FRA. His formal response requested a contribution
towards the maintenance of Haldon Pier.

South West Water: Raise no objection.

MMO: Request that the applicant is made aware that early consultation be carried out to
establish whether a Marine Licence would be required for the works.

Police Architectural Liaison Officer: Raises detail in relation to security of the hotel
guests and future occupants of the proposed buildings.

EHO: Requires the imposition of conditions to secure soundproofing of residential flats
to avoid nuisance to future occupiers from the operation of the A3 uses and the
achievement of specific targets in relation to food extract systems in terms of odour and
noise mitigation. Raises no specific objection subject to food safety standards being
adhered to and management of the pool in line with HSE guidance.

Affordable Housing Manager: Considers that the scheme should deliver Affordable
Housing Contributions in line with adopted Local Plan policy.

Torbay Development Agency: Are supportive of the scheme due to the need for
significant regeneration in and around the town centre and the contribution development
of the site would make to the continued economic recovery of the Bay. The delivery of a
high quality hotel along with improved food and drink outlets would help boost tourism
and compensate for the identified shortfall in quality tourism accommodation. This would
increase visitor numbers, footfall and spending which would generate significant
economic benefits. The ‘Transformation Agenda’ and the role sites like this will play in
realising its ambitions is stressed along with need to be wary of undermining investor
confidence and the impact this could have on the rate and scale of economic recovery.

Summary Of Representations

At the time of writing, 500 letters of objections and 89 letters of support have been
received in relation to this application. It is difficult to be absolutely clear on humbers of
respondents as there have been several versions of the scheme advertised and some
understandable confusion about the relevant application numbers and many responses
included both references.

It should be noted however, that significant opposition in the form of letters and various
petitions were submitted in response to earlier proposals on the site and it cannot be
assumed that the current revision to the scheme has necessarily overcome their
concerns.

The Torbay Friends of the Earth originally submitted a petition signed by 345 people
against the proposal on the grounds of overshadowing, loss of open carefree character,
impact on views, contrary to the Councils Building Heights Strategy, creating a
precedent for further development along the sea front and opposition to the loss of Cary
Green on the grounds of traffic congestion and loss of open space. This has since been

Page 17



supplemented by a further petition with 2014 people voicing opposition and 13 support
on similar grounds.

Objections have been received from the Torquay Neighbourhood Plan Forum and the
Town Centre Community Partnership.

The former take issue with the loss of Cary Green and the impact of the development on
the historic environment. The latter object to the failure to comply with the NPPF in
terms of sustainability, the protection of the natural built and historic environment and
that it fails to take account of the proposals included in the emerging neighbourhood
plan. It represents poor design and involves the loss of public open space. Cary Green
is identified in the Draft Neighbourhood Plan as a protected space.

Local hotel operators object to the proposal. The Rew Group consider the economic
justification for the scheme unconvincing and that it will have an adverse impact on
existing hoteliers. Richardson Hotels consider the proposal ‘monstrous’ casting
shadows over the harbour and obscuring views out to sea. An alternative community
based approach is suggested to saving the Pavilion.

Mervyn Seal, a local architect of note has commented extensively on the proposals
finding it damaging to the historic and architectural character of the area and has drawn
up an alternative scheme for the site.

Two principal areas of concern have emerged from the consultation: the size and design
of the building and the loss of Cary Green along with a number of more functional
matters relating to the design and impact of the building.

The big issues are:

e The height and scale of development on the site and its impact on the character
of the Torquay Harbour Conservation Area, on the settings of adjacent listed
buildings and on Princess Gardens.

e The quality of the design being out of keeping with the quaint ‘domestic ‘character
of the harbour and comprising overdevelopment of the site.

e Whether further hotel development is needed and whether this will only deflect
investment from existing sites, whether there are enough visitors to fill the bed
spaces, that a priority should be to sort out the town centre and that the economic
justification is unconvincing. It is also thought that those responsible for the
decline of the building should pay to have it repaired rather than it being funded
on the back of this damaging development.

e Whether the restoration of the Pavilion and delivery of the hotel can be
guaranteed.

e The loss of Cary Green for car parking. The concerns are the loss of a green
public space and its historical associations, that it is not shown to be necessary
as the existing MDL car park is not heavily used, that more shared use of the
existing facility should be encouraged and that the loss of this space can’t be

Page 18



justified when nearby public car parks are underused.
The design and functional concerns are:

e The ‘shadowing’ impact of the 11 storey structure on premises on Victoria Parade
and on Offshore.

e The possible impact of wind funnelling.

e The impact on the listed quay walls from the construction.

e The design and impact of the ‘bedroom bridge’ linking the Pavilion to the
proposed harbour side hotel.

e The width and design of the new waterside walkway and loss of traditional
railings.

There has also been a petition and letters of support which has been more pronounced
in relation to the current revision. There is support from some parts of the business
community, the Torbay Chamber Of Commerce submitted a petition signed by 270
businesses in support of the proposal and the Chairman of the Torbay Business
Forum offered support on the grounds that it is essential to achieve regeneration of the
harbour and will act as a spring board for further investment.

The Torbay Civic Society supports the proposals as does the Torquay Yacht Club.

South Devon College have voiced support for the proposal and would hope to use the
new hotel for student training experience.

There has been a specific request from Mencap to find space within the scheme to
provide changing facilities for disabled people which the applicants have said they can
accommodate. This can be secured by condition.

The reasons given for supporting the scheme are:

e The benefits to tourism and the provision of jobs and economic growth.

e The ability to save the Pavilion.

e That the Bay needs to be bought into the 21st century and needs to embrace
change.

e The creation of an iconic development that will complement Abbey Sands,
encourage further investment and encourage regeneration.

Relevant Planning History
Planning permission was granted in the 1980’s for a three storey terrace building
situated on the quay wall and of a similar height to Vaughan Parade.

Application P/2014/0282 was submitted in early 2014 and followed an extensive period
of pre application consultation. It is as yet undetermined as is the sister listed building
application P/2014/0283.

Page 19



This first submission as part of this application was relatively low rise, achieving a
maximum height of 8 storeys however it was not considered that the quality of the
scheme was acceptable. It achieved a more consistent height across the whole building
and a wider footprint and so did not relate well to Vaughan Parade and due to the width
of the ‘bookend’ encroached unacceptably on the setting of and views of the Pavilion.

This scheme was widely criticised by the public and statutory consultees alike resulting
in a review by the DRP who suggested a taller more slender building may be more
successful as a way of accommodating the scale of development proposed for the site.

The opportunity was taken to look at how Cary Green should be developed to create a
quality hard and soft landscaped place within which overspill parking could take place
when necessary but which could revert to public use for events or markets at other
times.

A revised scheme was subsequently submitted which included a 14 storey tower and
the application re-advertised. This involved a lower run of building in relation to
Vaughan Parade but the 14 storey lozenge shaped ‘bookend’ which was considered a
fine response to the site by the DRP in its further review was condemned by Historic
England as causing substantial harm to the historic environment due primarily to the
height of the tower. This scheme did however include Cary Green as a more dual use
space with improved surfacing and tree planting.

Further revisions to the Tower scheme were suggested to try and create a more slender
‘lightweight’ appearance to the tower.

This further revised Tower scheme was advertised concurrently with a new application,
P/2015/0961, for a lower rise ‘stepped scheme’ which sought to accommodate the
required level of floor space in a different format.

Whilst the ‘stepped scheme’ reduced the scale of the bookend to 10 stories, the ‘lost’
floor space was simply reapplied across the rest of the block with consequent impacts
particularly on the views of the Pavilion from Princess Gardens. The DRP considered
the stepped scheme weak and uninspiring but Historic England were more positive
given the reduction in height which they consider a major factor in achieving an
acceptable character and form of development.

There were however a number of detailed areas of concern in relation to the new design
of both the revised Tower and the stepped scheme.

The revisions to the Tower scheme did not overcome concerns about the dominance of
the structure and the shorter tower in the stepped scheme was ‘anywhere’ architecture
and had none of the ‘delight’ considered important by the DRP.

The northern elevation of the tower was dominated by service cores and lift shafts, the

rear of the hotel by extract systems and vents and the stepped increase in height and
busy design of the backdrop to the Pavilion was considered damaging to the setting of

Page 20



the Pavilion and on views from Princess Gardens. It also included a two storey link to
the Pavilion which was particularly clumsy.

This again generated significant and understandable concerns from statutory consultees
and members of the public.

The applicants were asked to look again at whether the more successful elements of
both the ‘Tower scheme’ and the ‘Stepped scheme’ could be merged to achieve a more
comfortable fit with its surroundings.

This was submitted as a formal revision to P/2015/0961 and has again been subject to
formal consultation and advert. It is this proposal that is being considered today.

Key Issues/Material Considerations

There is a long history to discussions on this site. This report will provide a background
to those discussions in terms of planning policy, explain the evolution of proposals on
the site, examine the key issues emerging from consultation and how these have been
responded to in terms of changes to the scheme.

Principle and Planning Policy -

The now superseded Torbay Local Plan for the period 1997-2011 recognised the need
to encourage regeneration of the Harbour through a series of measures including new
development. The Draft Torquay Harbour Area Action Plan, from its inception in 2006,
considered in more detail how key waterfront sites such as this should be developed to
help ‘fulfil the Harbour area’s potential’.

Policy TH4 1 proposed the development of this key site as a ‘significant waterfront
destination’ including hotel use, niche retail, restaurants, bars, residential
accommodation and a new use for the Pavilion.

Whilst this document was not formally adopted, the broad principles embodied were
picked up and developed as part of the Mayoral Vision (2008) which anticipated a
significant amount of development on this site. This identified the potential to upgrade
the ‘unattractive single storey concrete structure on North Quay comprising the Pavilion
car park’ which it regarded as an underutilised resource in a prime waterside location. It
also identified the need to secure substantial investment to repair and refurbish the
Pavilion building. The current applicant has been in discussions with the Council and
LPA about bringing development forward on this site since the Mayoral Vision was first
mooted.

Time has passed and these problems have not gone away or been resolved so the need
to develop this site to improve the waterfront and to secure the future of the Pavilion
figures in the newly adopted Local Plan as it did in its predecessor.

The site is located in a Core Tourism Investment Area and within the defined town

centre where there is need for regeneration and investment. Policy TO1l seeks
investment in tourism related uses, Policy SDT1 underpins the need to secure

Page 21



regeneration and large scale investment in the town centre and harbour areas and
policy SDT2 requires a mix of suitable town centre uses to come forward in the harbour
area. The Torquay Town Centre Master Plan identifies the whole application site as a
key regeneration site.

In the Draft Neighbourhood Plan Cary Green is identified as a protected public space.

The need to encourage and promote sustainable economic growth is a key objective in
the Local Plan (Policy SS1) and the ‘golden thread’ in the NPPF.

The principle of development is therefore not at issue but the concern strongly emerging
though consultation is over the scale and impact of the proposals in terms of both the
size of the proposed building and the loss of Cary Green to provide car parking and the
impact this could have on the wider Conservation Area, on the setting of nearby listed
buildings and on the Registered Park and Garden.

Whilst successive revisions have sought to reduce this impact it is clear from responses
from both statutory bodies and the public that this remains a key issue.

In terms of legal context, sections 66 and 72 of the 1990 Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act requires LPAs in reaching determinations on applications to
have ‘special regard’ to the desirability of preserving the character of conservation
areas, listed buildings and their setting. It is clear from case law that the impact of harm
on the historic environment has to be given considerable weight and the presumption
has to be in favour of preservation.

In terms of judging the impact of development on the historic environment, NPPF
paragraphs 132, 133 and 134 are of primary significance. Paragraph 132 explains that
great weight should be given to the conservation of the heritage assets as set out in law.

Paragraph 133 and 134 however do provide some discretion and allow a degree of
harm to the heritage asset providing this can be balanced against public benefit.
Development which causes substantial harm is only acceptable in exceptional
circumstances. Development which causes less than substantial harm is subject to a
less onerous test but must still demonstrate clear evidence of public benefit. This is not
however a simple balancing exercise but an assessment of whether there is justification
for overriding the presumption in favour of preservation.

Paragraph 140 of the NPPF also explains that LPAs should assess whether a proposal
for enabling development which would otherwise conflict with planning policies but
would secure the future of a heritage asset would outweigh the dis-benefits of departing
from those policies.

In this context HE Guidance in respect of Enabling Development which is still extant
guidance (although in the process of being updated to reflect the NPPF) provides useful
guidance about how the merits of a scheme should be evaluated. This particularly
exhorts LPAs to ensure that in the event of harm, ways of minimising that harm are fully

Page 22



explored.

HE’s Guidance Note 4 Tall Buildings is also of relevance in assessing applications on
this site.

Adopted Local Plan, policy SS10 reflects the requirements of s. 66 and s.72 of the 1990
Act in terms of an expectation that development will ‘sustain and enhance’ the historic
environment but then reflects the more discretionary NPPF guidance in terms of
assessing the impact of proposals on the historic environment and lists factors that will
be taken into account in reaching a decision such as the need to encourage appropriate
adaptations and new uses and whether the impact is necessary to deliver demonstrable
public benefits.

Policy HE1 requires development proposals to have ‘special regard’ to the desirability of
preserving listed buildings or their settings. It also confirms that new development
should respect the significance, scale, form, orientation and architectural detailing of any
listed building it affects.

Policy H1 encourages the delivery of new homes, Policy H2 specifies that a percentage
of affordable homes should be delivered as part of any scheme in excess of 15 units on
brownfield sites. There are a number of functional and design policies in the NPPF and
the Local Plan which are of relevance. These are paragraphs 56-64 in the NPPF and in
the Adopted Local Plan, policies DE1, DE2, DE3, and DE4 in relation to design, amenity
and building heights, ER1 in relation to flood risk, ER3 in relation to contamination, and
ER4 in relation to ground stability. The hotel and commercial uses will contribute to the
night-time economy in line with Policy TC5.

The scheme is required to reduce carbon emissions and the use of natural resources in
its design and operation in line with policy SS14 of the Local Plan and a condition will be
applied requiring the submission of a statement confirming how it will meet sustainability
objectives. In terms of meeting equality and diversity objectives as required by policies
SS11 and DEA1, the delivery of changing facilities in line with ‘Changing Places’ guidance
will help increase access to and use of local facilities.

In relation to movement, access and car parking, policies TAl, TA2 and TA3 are
relevant. These recommend a sustainable approach to transportation promoting
development in well located, accessible locations where the use of the car is reduced.

In relation to town centre development TA3 indicates no minimum threshold and expects
new development to be serviced by existing car parks and on street parking.

Key Issues.
The response to consultation confirms that there are two principle areas of concern

which is the size and height of the development and its impact on the historic
environment and the loss of Cary Green to car parking. These matters are dealt with in
1-9 below. The questions seek to address most significant points in assessing the
scheme. There are also a number of specific design/functional matters which are dealt
with in 10-14.

Page 23



The scale of development proposed for the site and why this is needed.

What impact does this have on the character of the historic environment?

Is the scheme of exceptional quality?

What are the public benefits of the scheme?

Is this harm mitigated by the scale of public benefit?

Can the delivery of the public benefit be guaranteed?

Can this benefit be delivered in other less harmful ways?

Is the loss of Cary Green to provide car parking acceptable?

Is this loss mitigated by the proposed public use of the space and is this secured
in any meaningful way?

CoNooG~WNE

10. Does the height of the structure result in unacceptable ‘shadowing’ of the harbour
and adjacent premises?

11. s itlikely to create wind funnelling?

12.  Is the construction likely to adversely affect the listed quay walls?

13. Is the design of the ‘bedroom bridge’ linking the Pavilion to the proposed harbour
side hotel acceptable?

14. Is the width and design of the new waterside walkway acceptable?

Each will be addressed in turn.

1. The scale of development proposed for the site and why this is
needed.

There have been ongoing discussions on an appropriate scale and form of development
for this sensitive site for several years. All the proposals have been informed by an
appraisal of the heritage significance of the site and its surroundings and an assessment
of sensitive viewpoints through an LVIA (Landscape and Visual Assessment Appraisal).

An urban design analysis was then carried out which recommended that the most
suitable form of building, in terms of achieving ‘a good fit’ with the established character
of the area would be to continue the form and scale of the listed Vaughan Parade
terrace terminating at the southern end of the harbour with a taller bookend of a similar
height to the 5 storey ‘Harbour Point’ on Victoria Parade. All the schemes submitted to
date follow this basic model but have included significantly more floor space than
anticipated in this early appraisal.

This scheme provides for a 4/5 storey building in a terrace form fronting the harbour
adjacent to Vaughan Parade to be used for hotel purposes increasing to an 11 storey
‘bookend’ comprising private flats to the south of the application site overlooking Fish

Quay.
The ‘terrace’ element will be a recessed storey higher than the ridge height of the

adjacent Vaughan Parade increasing to two storeys higher closer to the ‘tower’ or
‘bookend element’ of the scheme.

Page 24



To give some idea of the height of the tower it is useful to consider comparisons with
existing structures in the area.

Shirley Towers on Vane Hill Road are 9/10 storeys and Warren House, the block of flats
on St Lukes Road South with the ‘Pagoda’ lift overrun is the equivalent of a 9/10 storey
building. Ridgeway Heights and Kilmorie both achieve 8/9 storeys. This block at 11
storeys will be taller than those structures.

It is 36 m tall and so is some 14m shorter than the Observation Wheel which is 50m in
height. Its height particularly has drawn strong criticism from statutory consultees and
residents alike on the grounds of its adverse impact on the historic environment.

This amount of development is needed, according to the applicant, to deliver a viable
scheme that achieves regeneration of the site in line with adopted national and local
policies, to secure economic growth and to secure the refurbishment of the Pavilion with
costs of around £2.67m.

For this reason, attempts to reduce the scale of building on the site which would help
overcome the anticipated impacts have been resisted on the grounds of ‘viability’.

This latest revision, as will be explained in a subsequent section, does involve some
reduction in size and height achieving greater compatibility with its surroundings but it
does still present a challenging scale of development.

It is necessary however to be mindful of commercial realities. There is a clear desire
reflected in Local Plan policies to secure a scheme that will deliver a tourism related
use, save the Pavilion and provide a catalyst for regeneration. To happen, it has to be
demonstrably viable. This requires a certain amount of development to ensure delivery.
Achieving this in such a sensitive context is difficult. This is recognised in the NPPF and
lies behind the greater flexibility included in its policies which now accept a degree of
harm in conservation areas in order to secure development that will deliver defined
public benefit.

Many have commented that the Council should ‘give’ the building to the community but it
must be noted that the Council whilst freeholder does not have control of the building.
MDL have control of the Pavilion and the existing car park under the terms of a long
lease. It is also suggested that those responsible for the condition of the building should
finance the repairs. However, the problems with the building are a product of its steel
frame construction and not entirely attributable to neglect or lack of maintenance. This is
a significant inherent defect and a means of raising the funds for repair are needed
along with a robust and guaranteed future use for the building.

It is important therefore to consider the evidence supporting the need for this amount of
development.

A ‘supplemental viability study’ has been submitted by the applicant in relation to the
current scheme to demonstrate that this amount of development is necessary to deliver

Page 25



a hotel of this quality on the site and to fund restoration of the Pavilion.

Such a study is also of relevance in terms of understanding the capacity of the scheme
to deliver an exemplar building and a place making scale of regeneration and whether
there is scope to meet S106 contributions towards Affordable Housing and Community
Infrastructure Contributions.

The applicant was requested to submit a detailed summary of this supplemental study to
be available for public comment. This document reflected only a 7% profit margin but
was based on outdated figures and gave rise to comments from the public about the
deliverability of the improvements to the Pavilion.

The data included in this study has been independently assessed via an Independent
Viability Assessment (IVA) and it is now agreed by both parties that the predicted profit
margin is closer to what would be regarded as ‘viable’. Members have been fully briefed.

Developers would normally expect to achieve a profit margin of 20% but in this case
they claim they are prepared to proceed on the basis of their estimated 14.89% margin.
The viability study explains that the developer is prepared to do this due to his ‘place
making’ motives to enhance the offer in the town centre which will increase the long
term value of the hotel.

The outcome of the IVA indicated a possible profit margin of around 20% whilst still
being able to ‘afford’ a S106 contribution of £270,000 along with around £1m towards
public realm improvements. Whilst this doesn’t represent enough profit to allow any
meaningful reduction in the bulk of the scheme it did mean that the scheme should be
able to afford to deliver in terms of quality, wider public realm enhancements and/ or
s106 contributions.

Until recently there was some considerable distance between the LPA and the applicant
in terms of what the scheme could ‘afford’ to deliver This was largely based on a
disagreement about the likely values of the residential development which the IVA
assessor considers to be underplayed but also from the low value of the hotel which
according to the applicant costs significantly more to build than it is worth at least in the
short term.

As a means of trying to resolve the impasse it was suggested that this ‘surplus’ profit, as
a compromise, should be invested solely in the public realm in order to mitigate harm on
key public spaces, to uplift the quality of spaces around the building and to achieve
guality regeneration.

In the circumstances of the site, and the pressing need to deliver quality, this would be
more beneficial than trying to meet Affordable Housing or wider S106 related objectives.
This would benefit the operator of the hotel, deliver his place making aspirations and
help achieve the required scale of regeneration from the LPA’s perspective.

Significant progress has been achieved on this front and the applicant has now agreed

Page 26



to fund key public realm improvements ‘up front’ as well as to a range of public realm
improvements to be funded through deferred contributions in the event that the scheme
is more profitable than anticipated.

The Independent Viability Assessment (IVA) therefore confirms that there is limited
scope for any appreciable reduction in the scale of development beyond that already
achieved and that this number of high value flats is required to fund the restoration of
the Pavilion and delivery of a 4* hotel. The recent concession by the applicant in terms
of agreeing to fund wider public realm improvements goes a long way towards closing
the ‘viability gap’

It is necessary to then consider what harm this scale of development creates.

2. What Impact does this size of building have on the character of the
historic environment?

The evidence in relation to the significance of the heritage asset and the impact of the
scheme on the historic environment is contained in a Heritage Impact Assessment and
its subsequent addendums to reflect later revisions to the scheme and in a LVIA
(Landscape and Visual Impact Appraisal.

These documents identify the sensitivities in terms of the character of the place and
assess the impact of the proposal on them.

In relation to the impact on visual amenity which is addressed via the LVIA, this scale of
harm is graded to provide a more objective assessment of impact. There is not a similar
objective assessment of the impact of the scheme on the heritage assets despite
requests for this to be supplied.

This section considers the changes to the scheme that have taken place to try and
overcome concerns about the impact on the historic environment and then evaluates the
components of the current proposal.

a) How this scheme has changed from earlier proposals.

This revision does involve some reduction in floor space, unlike its predecessors, which
has allowed some concession to be made to achieving a better fit with its surroundings.

In the previous ‘stepped’ proposal the higher six storey middle section disrupted the
architectural language of the lower range of building. It no longer picked up the ‘terrace
theme’ identified as an important design concept but appeared disjointed and
inconsistent with adjacent building typologies.

The height and elevational treatment of this middle section seriously affected views of
the Pavilion from Princess Gardens. The location of plant, service cores and lift shafts
impacted on the visual quality of the overall scheme but particularly the tower element
by creating blank elevations which would have been readily visible from the town. The

Page 27



recessed upper storeys, designed to achieve some consistency with the scale of
Vaughan Parade, were bought flush through the inclusion of relocated bedrooms into
the setback, the link to the Pavilion was two storey and clumsy. The tower looked like a
standard residential block and did not reflect any kind of ‘sense of place’ or seaside
character.

In this ‘revised stepped scheme’, a floor has been deleted from the higher middle
section thus allowing a return to a lower more streamlined terrace to form the northern
arm of the building, service cores and lift shafts have been internalised, the recessed
roof line has been reinstated, balconies have been made a more pronounced feature of
the tower to lighten its profile, add delight and more of a seaside character and the link
has been returned to single storey.

In order to recapture some of this lost space however, the ‘bookend’ has increased from
10 to 11 storeys.

Notwithstanding these amendments, the size of the scheme continues to generate a
number of concerns, namely the height and dominance of the ‘bookend’, the scale of
enclosure of the Harbour and relationship to Vaughan Parade, the impact on views from
Princess Gardens and the impact on views from the Conservation Area to the
surrounding area.

It is useful to break down the scheme into the component parts and consider the impact
of the tower, the height and form of the terrace and the overall scale and form.

b) Impact of the Tower.

There are clearly understandable concerns about the height of the bookend which at 11
storeys is imposing on the more domestically scaled harbour.

The tower has been reduced in size from that included in P/2014/0282 and the
‘bookend’ has been redesigned to create a far more visually appealing building and has
been rotated slightly to try and reduce its impact on key views. It has a more ‘seaside
appearance’ with a sharper more dramatic prow to the building. It provides for a dark
central core encased in a pronounced white aluminium ‘skeletal’ frame with generous
balconies. The top two storeys are set back and designed to try and reduce its
dominance. This produces a more lightweight appearance which reduces the
dominance of earlier schemes.

Historic England raise a series of concerns in their response about the impact of the
tower on key views although in relation to this scheme it is described as ‘less than
substantial’ and that design modifications to the roof and upper level could reduce its
impact further. Since then, revised plans have been submitted which simplify the upper
levels of the tower though a change in roof profile and the framework encasing the
upper levels has been made less asymmetrical. It is considered that this does reduce
the impact of the upper levels of the tower although it now exposes the lift shaft to view
which the architects are trying to remedy.

Page 28



Historic England have commented on this revision and whilst they confirm that the
‘geometry of the roof in the revised proposal is less assertive and will be less of a draw
to the eye’ it is only considered to offer a modest improvement and does not alter the
substance of their advice which is that the scale of harm is considerable. Any progress
on mitigating the impact of the lift shaft will be provided at the meeting.

The Devon Garden Trust is a statutory consultee as the development affects the
Registered Park and Garden but their consultation response does not specifically
suggest that the height of the proposed building is an issue. Their comments relate
clearly to the overall mass and quality of the design which they consider mediocre and
not providing ‘an elegant building of the highest quality’. The Theatre Trust raised
concerns about the impact on the setting of the Pavilion but accept that this is beyond
their remit.

The Victorian Society expressed serious concerns about the level of harm arising
particularly from the height of the 11 storey tower.

The impact of the tower is a serious matter of concern to many local people.

There are two sources of guidance in respect of the acceptability of tall buildings. The
Councils Building Heights Strategy 2010, the principles of which are now included in the
Adopted Local Plan (policy DE4) and HE Advice Note 4 ‘Tall Buildings’.

In broad terms, the potential of tall buildings to promote regeneration particularly in
accessible locations and where nodes of activity can be reinforced such as harbours
and along sea fronts is recognised. Tall buildings may be acceptable if they enhance the
vitality of an area, contribute to the regeneration of Torbay, strengthen the character of
the area, are appropriate in terms of their visual impact, provide wider urban design or
socio-economic benefits, make a positive contribution to the built form townscape and
surrounding landscape, and preserve or enhance local long distance views and key
vistas subject to full impact testing.

HE guidance note 4 ‘Tall Buildings’ requires that great weight should be given to the
assets conservation in cases where tall buildings have an adverse impact on a
designated heritage asset and that any harm requires a clear and convincing
justification. It goes on to say, that in assessing this justification and weighing any public
benefits offered by a tall building proposal, particular regard should be paid to the
policies in paragraphs 8 and 9 of the NPPF which state that economic, social and
environmental gains are to be sought jointly and simultaneously in order to deliver
positive improvements in the quality of the built, natural and historic environment. This, it
suggests may involve looking at alternative designs or schemes that might be more
sustainable because they can deliver public benefits alongside positive improvements in
the local environment.

Thus in policy terms a tall building in this location would not be precluded as a matter of
principle providing it was thoroughly tested, shown to deliver quite significant wider

Page 29



public benefits and that alternative ways of delivering those benefits had been fully
considered.

C) Height and Form of the Terrace

The northern arm of the building takes the form of a terrace as identified in the Urban
Design Appraisal as being the most appropriate approach to developing this part of the
site. At four to five storeys it is a taller structure than envisaged in this study which
recommended a more consistent height relationship with Vaughan Parade so that the
domed roof of the Pavilion could still be read from Victoria Parade and to avoid
overwhelming views of the Pavilion from within Princess Gardens.

Whilst the relationship of the four storey section of the terrace to Vaughan Parade is
considered broadly acceptable, the increase to five storeys along about half of its length
does act in a way to impede views and disrupts the visual relationship of the Gardens
and its Pavilion building to the Harbour and its wooded backdrop.

It appears particularly imposing in views from Princess Gardens. It is this aspect of the
proposal that the Councils Conservation Officer finds the most harmful and it is certainly
picked up as a particular concern in the Devon Garden History Society’s comments.

In response to this concern, the applicant has looked again at whether this element of
the building could be removed or whether it could be set back a further metre to
potentially reduce its visual impact. It is clear that removal would make the scheme
unviable and it has been shown through modelling that setting it back would have a
negligible impact on the visual relationship between Princess Gardens and the harbour
side.

This element of the building is harmful to the historic environment. It does impact on
views between the Harbour and Princess Gardens. However the severity of impact is
dependent on where views are taken from and there are positions within the Gardens
where the new building succeeds in blocking views of Shirley Towers which might be
regarded as an advantage.

d) Overall Scale and Form.

The proposed building is clearly of a size and scale that is challenging and despite
design modifications, is difficult to accommodate without harm to the historic
environment.

It will form a fairly imposing edge to the harbour and whilst the mass is broken down to
pick up the verticality of the adjacent terrace it will appear out of kilter with the fine
grained more domestic scale of the majority of the harbour side. It will enclose the
harbour to a degree that will fundamentally affect its character and it will impact on views
in and out of the Torquay Harbour Conservation Area. It will also affect the setting of the
Grade Il listed Pavilion and the Registered Park and Garden.

Page 30



There will be some harm to the Grade | Listed St Johns Church as from a number of key
views its primacy in the townscape will be eroded. It will also affect, through the
backdrop it creates, views of the Grade Il listed Mallocks clock tower. These concerns
are reflected in the responses from statutory consultees who consider the benefit of
saving the Pavilion to be outweighed by the harm the development will cause.

However, this scheme is an improvement on previous proposals. It is well designed and
has inherent merit. It has sought to fuse the best elements of both the original tower
scheme and the original stepped scheme to produce a building that, notwithstanding its
size, has tried to reflect the rhythm, verticality and appearance of the adjacent listed
terrace in the design of the northern arm of the building and includes a tower element
that has been substantially redesigned to face all ways, has eliminated the blank
elevations that marred the previous iteration and includes an architectural treatment that
succeeds in creating a more lightweight and less dominating appearance. This relieves
some of the dominance of the previous proposals.

e) Assessment of impact.

Key views have been thoroughly assessed on a Member site visit. The viewpoints
considered are included as an appendix to the report. Comparisons with structures of a
similar size were also made to ensure clarity about height.

Additional viewpoints were requested by Members following the site visit and these have
now been submitted and forwarded to Members and included on the Councils web site.

The impact of the development on these viewpoints have been more objectively
assessed as part of the LVIA which specifically looks at the impact of the proposal on
visual amenity and townscape.

This describes a ‘slight beneficial’ impact on views along Torwood Street when the
development is operational. A 'moderate adverse-slight adverse’ impact is described on
views from Parkhill Road due to the screening of the Pavilion in views across the
Harbour. Views from Beacon Hill are classified as ‘slight adverse’ as the Royal Terrace
Gardens will remain as a back drop to the site.

Views from Haldon Pier, Beacon Quay and South Quay are described as ‘slight adverse’
as partial views towards the Pavilion will be maintained by the form of the proposed
building. Views from the Terrace will experience a ‘moderate adverse’ impact due to the
screening of views towards the sea. Views from Rock Walk will experience a ‘slight
adverse’ impact as will views from Princess Gardens according to this assessment.
Members will be able to consider whether this assessment correlates with their
impressions following the site visit.

In relation to views down Torwood Street, which are currently quite open and include
vistas of the sea and countryside beyond, these would be largely obscured by any
development of the site which is inevitable if the unattractive car park edge to the
harbour is to be remodelled as anticipated in various local plan proposals both now and

Page 31



in the past.

The same applies to views of Mallocks Clock Tower: its backdrop will fundamentally
change through any development of the car park site whatever its size.

A beneficial impact of development on this site and an aspect missed in the Historic
Impact Assessment and the LVIA is the degree to which views of the rear of the Fleet
Walk shopping centre will be screened from positions along Beacon Quay and South

Quay.

An objective matrix base evaluation of the impact of the proposal on the heritage assets,
similar to that included in the LVIA is not provided in the Heritage Impact Statements to
help a greater understanding of the scale of harm on the defined heritage asset. It offers
a commentary on the evolution of the proposals and makes presumptions about relative
scales of harm but does not attempt to quantify the level of impact on individual heritage
assets.

Neither does it deal satisfactorily with the cumulative impact of this scheme on the
character and appearance of the place which is largely defined by the relationship of
these individual assets. The Councils Conservation officer considers the assessment of
harm in relation to the historic environment to be inadequate.

There is unquestionably a degree of harm arising from development of this site and in
the absence of any evidence to support an alternative position it has to be concluded
that the level of harm is at least of a ‘significant’ or ‘considerable’ scale which is reflected
in the advice of Historic England.

Overall it can be concluded that in policy terms for the scheme to be acceptable it
should be of exceptional quality and deliver quite exceptional public benefits if the
presumption in favour of preservation is to be overridden.

It is also necessary to consider whether the benefits of the proposal can be delivered in
less harmful ways. This forms the substance of the following sections.

3. Is the scheme of exceptional quality and will it drive regeneration
forward?

For a scheme to drive genuine regeneration it has to deliver both in terms of the building
and its setting. This is well demonstrated by the Abbey Sands development where the
guality and extent of the new public realm is of equal importance in terms of creating a
sense of place as the building itself.

The delivery of a scheme of exceptional quality and a transformative scale of
regeneration is a key policy requirement. Policy SDT2 explains that ‘high quality
development is needed which improves the public realm’.

If delivered, it would fall to be considered as a defined public benefit due to the long term

Page 32



beneficial impact it could have on the quality of the place. It may also be sufficient to
mitigate some of the harm described on the historic environment. The DRP in their
assessment of proposals stressed the need for an exemplar scheme and setting to
offset any harm on the historic environment.

a) The quality of the building

The quality of the building design is a product of satisfying broad principles of scale,
form and mass along with ensuring that the detailed appearance and use of good quality
robust materials is fully resolved and secured.

Setting aside issues of size, there have been ongoing discussions regarding challenging
elements of the design that could be improved on to better meet the anticipated levels of
quality. These were:

The harmful impact of the ‘fifth storey’

The detail in relation to north elevation of the terrace building.

Means of better integrating the bedroom link.

The need to pick up more strongly the character of the adjacent Vaughan Parade

in terms of the window detailing, scale, proportion and relief.

Measures to reduce the visual impact of the Tower.

e Establishing a base line quality in terms of the use of materials and detailed
design matters.

e Further information/revised plans have now been submitted which clarify that;

e The fifth’ storey cannot be removed for viability reasons or its impact on views
mitigated by setting it back. The choice of materials to be used will be important
as will be the detailed design in terms of achieving a recessive appearance. This
could be secured by condition.

e Options testing in relation to the north elevation show it to be broadly acceptable
providing the large scale detail demonstrates sufficient quality in terms of relief,
detailing and signage which can be secured by condition.

e The bedroom link has been marginally improved by the inclusion of a glazed set
back at the western end of the link where it joins the new building to match the
lightweight glazed box which separates the link from the listed building. This
provides a more balanced appearance to the link. There is still a need to ensure
that in terms of detail it is acceptable and that its underside is treated in a way
that will lighten and add interest to pedestrians passing beneath. This can be
secured by condition.

e The Design Review Panel were anxious to ensure that in terms of the detailed
handling of the facade to the new building, the relationship to Vaughan Parade
was fully reflected in terms of proportions, relief and solid to void ratios to provide
‘an ordered and finessed fagade’. Larger scale sections have been provided but
there is still some need for further detail to ensure a wholly satisfactory approach
particularly in terms of achieving relief and shadowing across the scheme. This
can be secured by condition.

e |t is considered that the distinctive framework to the tower is shown to be

Page 33



adequate in terms of relief although the use of aluminium as a material rather
than render needs to be fully demonstrated through detailed drawings showing
how a continuous curve can be maintained and that joints are properly handled.
On a similar point, there is some concern that the glazed balconies which are
shown to be frameless are nonetheless sectional or faceted rather following a
continuous curve as secured at Abbey Sands and this should be remedied. If the
applicant is agreeable, this detail can be secured by condition.

e The upper storeys of the tower have been revised to reduce its dominance
although the change to the roof profile does expose the lift shaft to view. It is
confirmed by Historic England that the geometry of the roof profile is less
assertive although it does not change their advice.

e Whilst sections through the facade have been supplied in relation to the hotel
building and the apartment building larger scale details in relation to key features
of the building are required before the quality of appearance can be confirmed.
The specification of materials show a commitment to the use of good quality
materials but there are some notable omissions which will need to be satisfied
before this matter is assured. This matter could be left to appropriate conditions.

e The impact of external plant in relation to the Pavilion is not fully resolved and
requires further information to be submitted which is picked up in more detail in
the listed building application.

b) Quality of the public realm

As originally submitted, the only public realm improvements included were a ‘new’
harbour side walkway as a replacement for the existing public right of way and the
delivery of good quality stone paving immediately adjacent to the front elevation of the
Pavilion building and the new hotel building extending only across to the proposed car
park on Cary Green.

A ‘public square’ was included in the submitted landscape proposals occupying the
area between the rear of the Pavilion and the Promenade but this was only to be half
completed up to the ‘redline’.

There were no other proposals to lift the quality of the adjacent public realm and
attempts to remedy this lack of a more comprehensive approach to secure wider
regeneration objectives were met with resistance on the grounds of viability.

The submitted LVIA specifically recommends a strategy for mitigation of harm to reflect
guidance in the Councils Urban Design Guide to create a landscape design that
‘alleviates negative visual impacts and integrates the site within the urban fabric of
Torbay’. It states that the design of external spaces shall be integrated into the wider
landscape setting to reinforce local distinctiveness and that the design of the public
realm shall create successful places that respect natural features and are accessible to
all. Particular regard it says should be paid to Princess Gardens anticipating
improvements to the quality of this open space through ‘improvements to the spatial
design of areas adjacent to the Pavilion and to Cary Green which forms a visual

Page 34



extension to the Gardens reinforcing the connectivity between these green spaces that
will strengthen both the visual and physical quality’. It is fair to say that the submitted
scheme fell far short of this ambition.

In an attempt to move this forward, Officers identified where enhancements should be
secured. Some of these improvements are ‘site related’ and should be delivered as a
matter of course due to the impact of the proposed development. Others are related to
wider regeneration aspirations which should be funded either through S106
contributions or from the surplus profit identified through the IVA to mitigate the impact
of the scheme on the wider area.

As a result of the ‘viability gap’ identified through the IVA and the fact that good quality
and extensive public realm improvements are vital to any successful scheme officers
have pushed for significant improvements to the scale, range and quality of the public
realm improvements.

It has recently been agreed that the following additional public realm improvements are
to be delivered ‘up front’.

e Princess Gardens: The applicant has offered a financial contribution of £30,000
towards enhancements in Princess Gardens. A Conservation Management Plan
is in the process of being put together to direct investment in the Gardens and
this document will clarify the most appropriate way for this money to be spent.
The Gardens are ‘at risk’ and as the significance of the heritage asset is
diminished as a result of the development it is wholly appropriate that there
should be some mitigation arising as a consequence of this development.

e Cary Green: Setting aside issues of principle, there had been ongoing debates
about the quality of the proposed surface treatment of the car park area and the
‘patchwork quilt’ effect of not dealing with the whole area on a comprehensive
basis. In order for this space to function as a key public space when not used for
parking and for it to form an appropriate setting to the key listed buildings that
directly overlook it a high quality and more holistic approach was considered vital.
A revised scheme has now been submitted which extends granite paving across
the whole of Cary Green and includes replacement of the brown herringbone
paving adjacent to the rear of properties on Vaughan Parade. It would be
preferable if this extended further to pick up the area between the new stone setts
at the foot of north elevation of the proposed building and Offshore and included
the area alongside 1 Palk Street and the SoHo Bar. Although this represents a
significant improvement on the submitted scheme, the further extensions should
be secured. The former should be delivered ‘upfront’ as part of the Cary Green
revised scheme and the latter as a ‘deferred contribution’ as it is not so critical to
the delivery of a quality setting to the Pavilion. The revised layout for the most
part confines hotel car parking to the west of the site adjacent to the road leaving
the eastern side adjacent to the Vaughan Parade listed terrace for seasonal
overspill parking and for the most part available for public use. It presents a far
more attractive, consistent and coherent approach in terms of delivering a space
that will be of public value and will provide an appropriate setting to key listed

Page 35



buildings.

e The Promenade to the rear of the Pavilion: It has been agreed that the short
stretch of the old hexagonal paving slabs that are still in place here will be
replaced with granite paving to match that which exists to the west of the site.

e The public square to the rear of the Pavilion: It has been agreed that this will
be completed in accordance with the submitted detail rather than left half finished.

e Fish Quay: The loss of the traditional railings arising from construction of the new
harbour walkway is of concern. The applicant has agreed to mitigate this by
relocating these railings to South Quay to replace the existing poor quality
galvanised railings. In order to provide a cohesive public realm adjacent to the
new development and along Fish Quay they have also agreed to replace the poor
quality galvanised railings which extend along Fish Quay to the bridge and
introduce a more modern form of enclosure to match that on the new
development which would provide some visual integration between the
application site and the bridge. Details to confirm an acceptable approach have
not as yet been supplied.

In terms of deferred contributions, the following is agreed:

e The Ziggurat: The removal of this structure is identified as a key element in the
Torquay Town Centre Master Plan in terms of public realm enhancements. Its
removal and appropriate treatment would to some degree compensate for the
loss of Cary Green as a public space. A contribution of £100,000 towards this
ambition has been offered but only as a deferred contribution.

e Fish Quay: Whilst resurfacing of this would be better ‘upfront’ it was agreed that
if the proposals for Cary Green fully delivered in terms of scope and quality then
this could be considered as a deferred contribution.

e Cary Green: As explained above, the extension of the granite paving adjacent to
SoHo should be secured as a deferred contribution depending on the resources
available and the priorities at the time. This option can be reflected in the s106
agreement.

The proposals in relation to the public realm have been considerably upgraded since
submission and now begin to meet the ambition identified in the LVIA to deliver
integrated improvements to the public realm. One of the identified benefits of
development on this site is to act as a catalyst for regeneration and it is considered that
iS now reasonably met.

This scheme now delivers appropriate enhancements to lift the quality of spaces around

it and achieves ‘place making’ regeneration to offset some of the harm to the historic
environment.

Page 36



4. What are the public benefits of the scheme?

As has been explained, the public benefits of the proposal can outweigh the strong
presumption against approval which arise from concerns about the scale of harm on the
historic environment identified in the sections above.

However, by law, the harm has to be given considerable weight and therefore the public
benefits also need to be considerable to outweigh the harm.

The public benefits are:

e The restoration of the Pavilion and for a use that will guarantee its long term
future and maintenance,

e The delivery of a 4* hotel and the contribution this will have to maintaining Torbay
as a premier tourist resort.

e The creation of jobs and associated economic activity.

e The regeneration of the harbour side and wider public realm improvements.

e Provision of new homes in a town centre location.

The Pavilion is in a poor state and its restoration has been a key driver in pursuing
development proposals on the site. It was an innovative building at the time of its
construction, conceived as a complete steel frame from the foundations upwards. The
steel frame was then built into the external walls which were constructed of faience
blocks and brickwork. Many of these first generation steel framed buildings have
corrosion issues. It was identified as being in need of substantial investment in the draft
Torquay Harbour Area Action Plan in 2006. An assessment of the current condition of
the building was carried out in 2013 by Alan Baxter Associates who are specialist
structural engineers.

The building suffers from severe water penetration which has led to corroded steelwork
and cracked faience. The costs of correcting these defects to give the building a robust
25 year ‘life’ has been recently estimated at £2.76 million. There is no grant aid
available to rectify the faults whilst the building remains under private control. A repairs
notice, which the LPA could serve would only achieve basic weatherproofing to arrest
further decline, it could not require the fundamental intervention that is needed to secure
the long terms future of this listed building.

Restoring the Pavilion and identifying a robust long term future for the building is a key
public benefit. Use as a front of house for the proposed hotel is a very good use for the
Pavilion. It secures public access and gives the building a long term future. This satisfies
two public benefit tests in that it saves a listed building at risk and it secures a use that
will ensure its long term maintenance.

The delivery of a good quality hotel in a prime location can be seen as a public benefit
as it delivers jobs, promotes economic activity and generates vitality. The anticipated

Page 37



future occupier is the Harbour Hotel group owned by the applicant the Nicholas James
Group. This is a ‘high end’ chain operating mainly 4* hotels and it would have a
significant impact on visitor attraction putting Torbay firmly on the map.

An economic impact assessment submitted to support the application, evaluates the
potential of the scheme to benefit the local economy by looking at three measures of
impact, employment generated, wages and Gross Value Added (GVA) which is a
measure of how much value the proposed development adds to the local economy.

These impacts arise from the construction of the development, the ongoing operation of
the hotel, the ongoing operation of the commercial uses. The report estimates that,
based on the £32m costs of construction, the equivalent of 20 FTE jobs will be created
though the building of the scheme, the operation of the hotel will create around 98 FTE
jobs averaged over the year, 81 jobs are estimated to be generated by the operation of
the bars and restaurants, cumulatively this will generate wages in the order of £3.7 m
per annum and the GVA (i.e. the value of the scheme to the local economy) is in the
order of £4.27 m per year.

The report also looks at the ‘net additional local impact’. This considers a range of
factors that will have an impact on the contribution that this scheme makes to local
economy such as how much employment and economic impact is displaced from
elsewhere in the bay, how much of this will leak outside the local area and the multiplier
effect of the spending practices of the operator. Based on the Harbour Hotels policy of
local sourcing of produce and services it estimates this to add in the order of 136 jobs,
£2.5 m in wages and an estimated GVA of £2.9m to the overall scale of benefit.

The report also points out the unquantified impacts of the scheme in terms of
encouraging regeneration of the harbour, helping to deliver the wider proposals set out
in the Town Centre Master Plan and meeting the various economic objectives embodied
in the Economic Development Strategy, the “Turning the Tide’ Tourism strategy and the
newly Adopted Local Plan.

The need for jobs and economic growth is one of the Councils key objectives and the
recent data in relation to increasing poverty levels reinforces the need to put the creation
of jobs as a high priority. The Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) is the means by
which the wellbeing of a community is measured. Torbay performs poorly when
compared to the country as a whole. The Community Investment Areas (CIA’s)included
in the Local Plan are based on the top 20% most deprived areas relative to England and
the 2015 data show that deprivation is worsening across the Bay with CIA’s growing in
extent and the scale of deprivation.

The most up-to-date tourist data confirms that visitor numbers and turn over has
increased and ‘Turning the Tide’ indicates that there is a shortage of the higher ranking
hotels in the 4and 5* categories. Torbay’s economy relies heavily on tourism. In 2013
the value of tourism to the local economy was £445m with the equivalent of 9234 full
time jobs which is 22% of all employment in Torbay. This confirms that there is a
demand for new and tourist improved facilities.

Page 38



The report concludes that employment and GVA generated by the development are
estimated to be an equivalent of around 1% in the tourism sector of Torbay and it would
suggest that a good quality hotel with all the spin off benefits entailed will deliver a
significant boost to the local economy.

In view of the nature of appraisals, the centrality of the economic argument and the
disputes about the methodology used the LPA has sought a review of the Economic
Appraisal submitted in support of the application. This confirms a substantial economic
benefit although it points out that the number of jobs likely to be generated in the hotel is
less than the average 98 FTEs suggested in the HJA Economic Appraisal. Based on
the HCA Employment Density Guide a figure closer to 60 FTE’s would be expected.
However the study concludes that it would make little difference to the overall prediction
of economic benefit as the consultants used ‘conservative’ GVA multipliers and omitted
to include additional new visitor spend in their calculations. Their verdict is that the
overall employment and GVA impacts predicted is robust.

It should be noted that a range of figures have emerged from various studies and
appraisals used to help inform a judgment about the overall economic benefit of the
proposal and the viability of the scheme itself. Construction costs have varied between
studies along with discrepancies in likely values. Whilst these differences have been
identified and where possible resolved they are not of a scale to undermine any decision
and it should be recognised that economic appraisals and IVA’s are predictions based
on best practice and not an exact science.

The Chamber of Commerce support the scheme on the grounds of the benefit to the
local economy as do other businesses in the Bay. Some hoteliers notably the Rew
Group and Richardson Hotels consider the economic benefits overplayed and that
further hotel development would be damaging to the economy when there are so many
hotels struggling and in need of investment. The point has been made in responses to
consultation that a new hotel here will simply divert investment from other hotels in the
area. The argument is that the Bay is not short of hotels but of good quality ones and
surely it is better to invest in existing business than to build new hotels particularly given
the harm arising.

In this context it is useful to note that the Imperial Hotel has been sold to a quality
operator who clearly wasn’t deterred in his investment decision by the prospect of a
competitor setting up on the harbour side.

In relation to wider benefits, the applicants have agreed to include within the commercial
space an adult changing facility to the ‘Changing Places’ standard which will be of
significant benefit to people who need this kind of facility and to their carers.

The delivery of new housing would be beneficial from an economic point of view, it
would contribute to delivery of a five year land supply and deliver new homes bonus.

To sum up, the scheme delivers in terms of achieving restoration of the Pavilion and for

Page 39



a use that will secure its long term future. It will be of significant benefit to the local
economy.

5. Can the delivery of the public benefit be guaranteed?

In terms of the delivery of the restored Pavilion and the hotel building, the lease the
applicant has negotiated with the Council indicates that an agreed schedule of works
would be undertaken prior to occupation of any of the apartments on the site. It also
indicates a commitment to construct the hotel to shell and core prior to occupation of the
20th apartment on the site. This can be secured by condition.

Given the condition of the building, more detailed discussions will be needed about the
scope and scale of these works which should be more fully specified and should reflect
the recommendations of the specialist engineer and include implementation of the range
of works included in the submitted listed building application. A prompt start should be
secured and if there is a delay in implementation a further review maybe necessary of
the scope of works needed.

A ‘performance bond’ to ensure delivery in the event of any unforeseen financial
difficulties may be of benefit.

It would also be necessary to ensure that the hotel to be delivered is of the promised
quality that will have the best chance of securing the anticipated spin offs in terms of
economic growth and regeneration.

The Harbour Hotel Group are a good quality high end operator. Members visited the
Salcombe Harbour Hotel to assess the quality of the offer and the facilities. It has a
policy of local procurement both in terms of construction and sourcing of produce. This
was stressed in the HJA Economic Impact Report and contributed to scale of economic
benefit predicted. The S106 should therefore include a signed lease or other means of
confirming occupancy on completion of the scheme and a commitment to local
procurement included. Given the potential impact of construction works on the harbour a
clearly and tightly defined phasing programme would be required.

Whilst economic benefits of the scale suggested cannot be guaranteed, the HJA
Economic Impact Report was independently reviewed and despite some quibbles about
methodology, it found the predictions regarding the likely economic benefit to the town to
be sound.

The public realm improvements could for the most part be secured through a S278
notice and appropriate conditions. The financial contribution towards the Princess
Gardens enhancements and any deferred contributions will need to be secured through
the S106 agreement.

6. Can this benefit be delivered in other less harmful ways?

This is a key test in assessing the acceptability of a scheme that is harmful but

Page 40



predicated on the need to fund, in this case, restoration of a listed building.

A common theme in Enabling Development Guidance and explicit in Historic England’s
consultation response is that the LPA needs to be confident that it has been clearly and
convincingly demonstrated by the applicant that the perceived wider public benefits
offered by the proposals cannot be delivered by a means that reduces the harm
identified.

The work carried out as part of the IVA to assess whether this scale of development was
necessary to deliver this hotel led scheme identified that the low value ascribed to the
hotel was driving the large number of flats to effectively subsidise its delivery and to pay
for restoration of the Pavilion.

It is therefore evident that harm might be minimised by deleting the unprofitable bit of the
development and replacing this with a higher value land use. The applicants were
asked to look at what sized building would be needed if it was to deliver ground floor
commercial uses with residential flats in place of the hotel and derive enough profit to
restore the Pavilion.

This produced a smaller building, much closer in form and size to that identified in the
Urban Design Assessment as capable of being accommodated in this location with
minimal impact on the historic environment.

The Pavilion would lend itself to a variety of alternative uses that would become more
feasible once fully repaired although its use as a ‘front of house’ facility for an
established high end hotel chain does provide a long term guaranteed use and resolves
future maintenance liabilities.

The inclusion of a hotel delivers evident economic benefit although this has to be set
against the harm identified to the historic environment.

The ‘residential option’ would clearly not deliver the same scale of economic benefit as
inclusion of a hotel but it would still deliver some economic growth during construction
and from the operation of the commercial uses on the ground floor. This has been
assessed by the consultants appointed by the LPA to review the economic benefits of
the scheme who conclude that in terms of a summary of all benefits, the number of jobs
would be reduced from 116 to 47 this would generate £1.4m less in wages and £1.7m
less GVA per year. This would on a proportionate basis reduce the economic benefit by
over a half.

Such a scheme may have the capacity, through greater profitability, to deliver more in
the way of wider regeneration enhancements. It also needs to be recognised that
achieving investment and new hotel accommodation in this location may act in a way to
deflect investment from other hotel sites. After all, there is no shortage of hotel sites in
Torbay just a lack of interest in bringing them forward.

This point emerged as a common theme in consultation and the consultants were asked
to consider to what extent deflection of investment was likely to affect other players in

Page 41



the tourist sector. They did not consider it significant: in an extreme case a competitor
operating at their margins might be forced to close but it may also spur existing hotels to
‘up their game’ and respond with renovations of their own.

The transformation secured by the development of Abbey Sands shows that a similar
essentially residential scheme can secure economic benefits and regeneration. It must
be acknowledged however that there is no certainty that such an application would be
forthcoming, it would introduce further delay in resolving the future of the Pavilion and
would not secure such a robust future use for the building.

To conclude, the benefit of restoring the Pavilion (albeit with a less secure future) can be
achieved in a less harmful way although it won'’t deliver the same scale of economic
benefit and may involve further damaging delay in securing the future of the Pavilion.

7. Is the harm mitigated by the scale of public benefits?

The report has so far concluded that the scheme will have a significantly harmful impact
on the historic environment. S 66 and S 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 impose a duty on LPAs to give considerable weight and
importance to the desirability of preserving the settings of listed buildings and preserving
or enhancing the character of Conservation Areas and that there is a strong
presumption against planning permission being granted in the event of harm whether it
is substantial or less than substantial. This has to be the first consideration.

Paragraph 134 of the NPPF does allow, once this duty has been fully taken into
account, to weigh the harm against the scale of benefit and to make a decision
accordingly. In this context, it has to be accepted that delivery of a scheme on this site of
a tourism related use will guarantee the future of the Pavilion and deliver clear economic
benefits. The quality of the scheme has been improved particularly with regard to the
range of public realm improvements and its capacity to drive a ‘place making’ or
transformative scale of regeneration. It has also evident that a different package of uses
would achieve some of those key benefits but in a way that would minimise the impact
on the historic environment.

Approval can be justified providing the decision maker is satisfied that the scale of harm
is outweighed by the public benefit. If the scale of harm is less than substantial then the
test is less onerous. This is a matter of judgement and there is no consistent view
emerging from consultees. Historic England consider the harm to be less than
substantial but still significant, The Victorian Society consider it to be substantial. The
Devon Gardens Trust find it unacceptable but for different reasons to the others. Officers
concur with Historic England that the degree of harm is less than substantial although
still significant.

It is necessary therefore to weigh the public benefits against the harm.

A compelling case for the development has to be:

Page 42



e A more speedy resolution to the future of the Pavilion and its more robust and
guaranteed future as the ‘front of house’ serving the hotel.

e The delivery of a 4* hotel and new commercial space with all the attendant
economic benefits this will bring. It will help put Torquay on the map, deliver jobs,
increase visitor numbers and drive local economic growth and vibrancy.

e The regeneration of the currently rather run down and unattractive harbour edge
and wider public realm improvements which will help deliver place making
regeneration.

Against the development is the very real harm to the historic environment.

This arises essentially from the fifth storey of the ‘terrace building’ and the top 3/4 stories
of the tower building. If these elements were removed the building would be similar in
form and size to that which emerged from the initial Urban Design Study as forming an
acceptable form of development compatible with the character of the conservation area.
It also reflects that which would be delivered if a wholly residential scheme were
pursued on the site. It would also be more consistent with suggestions made by
consultees about a more suitable scale of development.

Is the fifth storey on the terrace building and the top 3/4 stories of the tower building a
price worth paying for the hotel with its attendant economic benefits and a confident long
term future for the Pavilion?

This is a very hard judgement call and Officers find on balance, given the vital need for
jobs, investment and economic stimulus coupled with recent modifications to the design
and the significant improvement in terms of the scale, scope and quality of the public
realm improvements that the strong presumption against approval enshrined in the 1990
Act is just outweighed by the identified benefits.

However this is a very finely balanced judgement and it is entirely legitimate, having
considered all the matters raised in this report for Members to decide to give greater
weight to the need to preserve and enhance the character of the Torquay Harbour
Conservation Area, the settings of adjacent Listed buildings and the Registered Park
and Garden and to consider that the development should be refused planning
permission.

There is no right or wrong answer, it is a judgement based on the scale of harm against
the public benefit and reflects whether priority should be given to a proposal that will
generate economic benefit over preservation of the historic character of the town.

There are, however, a number of other matters to consider in terms of reaching a
decision on this application.

8. Is the loss of Cary Green to provide car parking acceptable?

The loss of Cary Green to provide car parking is a hugely significant issue particularly

Page 43



for local people. The objections in summary relate to the physical loss of the green
space, its replacement by car parking, the impact this will have on the character of the
Conservation Area and the setting of adjacent listed buildings, it is questioned why it is
necessary given the existing MDL car park is not often used to capacity as evidenced by
the fairly consistent use of the existing top deck of the car park for public pay and
display parking, why more ‘shared use’ of MDL’s existing car park has not been
considered to meet the needs for car parking and why spaces in adjacent underused car
parks could not be used.

The scheme provides for the removal of all planting and structures within Cary Green. It
is proposed to be resurfaced, include some tree planting and laid out to provide, in the
revised scheme, 69 car parking spaces. 32 spaces are allocated for the hotel to use on
a permanent basis and the balance for MDL to use on a seasonal basis.

The applicant contends that the provision of this scale of parking is essential to delivery
of this project.

Cary Green is not within the curtilage of the Registered Park and Garden nor does it
benefit from any statutory landscape protection.

In relation to the value of open space per se, it is recognised as being of intrinsic value
from a health perspective and paragraph 74 of the NPPF indicates that ‘open space,
sports and recreational buildings and land should not be built on unless there is an
assessment to show it is surplus to requirements and it would be replaced by other
better provision. The focus of this policy is in relation to retaining land and buildings
which encourage sports and associated activity which is not the primary function of this
site. It is also not lost beneath buildings but could remain in use as public space for a
proportion of the year.

Nonetheless, its ‘value’ in terms of the contribution it makes to the recreational needs of
the area has been assessed by the Principal Natural Environment Officer as part of a
wider review who finds that Cary Green is essentially a ‘transition’ rather than
destination space and given its future use, which includes public access and its
proximity to Princess Gardens he does not consider the development to cause detriment
to the availability of open space. He does point out some design changes and
refinements which would help the area to continue its function as a transition space and
makes suggestions which would enhance its use for events and markets.

The main value of the site is its contribution to the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area and in creating a valued setting to the adjacent listed buildings which
frame it on three sides. These are 1 Palk Street, 3-15 Vaughn Parade and the Pavilion
itself. It is therefore of heritage significance.

Historic England raise no objection to its loss nor did the DRP in considering the various
proposals for the site. The Victorian Society consider its loss to be of significant concern
as does the Theatres Trust although it is not their statutory function to comment on
townscape issues.

Page 44



In policy terms, the assessment is the same as that for the development as a whole.
Development should ‘preserve or enhance’ but some harm can be weighed in the
balance if the harm is deemed to be less than substantial and there are key public
benefits.

It is also necessary to consider what local plan policies suggest in respect of car parking
in relation to these specific uses and what provision there should be in a town centre
location such as this.

Policy TA3 indicates minimum thresholds for car parking for the uses comprised within
this application. Overriding this however, the policy states that there is no specified
minimum threshold for town centre uses. It says that in general, existing car parks and
on-street car parking will be able to service new development and that car free
development will be permitted within town centres where there is good access to public
transport and the potential to utilise spaces within existing car parks. On site provision
would only be in exceptional circumstances where a change of use could lead to
problems with overspill and discriminate parking.

There are a number of issues to consider therefore, is the parking necessary to the
delivery of the development, is it acceptable in terms of the thrust of town centre parking
policies, is the character of the Conservation Area and the setting of listed buildings
adversely affected, what is the scale of harm, can this be mitigated and does it secure a
public benefit?

It is claimed to be necessary from the applicant’s point of view and essential for delivery.

MDL currently have 235 car parking spaces on two decks. 126 on the lower deck and
109 on the upper deck. This serves 300+ berthholders and in in peak months, a
minimum of 214 spaces is apparently needed.

Following redevelopment of the site, 134 spaces will be available on the lower deck and
only 81 on the upper deck. 43 of these are allocated to serve the residential flats leaving
38 ‘residual’ spaces which will, as is currently the case, be used either for MDL
berthholders or public pay and display if not needed for operational purposes.

To meet the minimum 214 spaces MDL claims is necessary to meet berthholders needs,
it was proposed to include 42 overspill spaces for MDL on Cary Green along with 32
spaces for the hotel.

Evidence has been requested for many months now to support the underlying claim that
214 spaces is an operational minimum for the Marina in peak weeks and to help define
when their peak demand is. This should be fairly easy to confirm from MDL’s own
records and from occupancy levels for the existing car park.

Observation suggests there are very few occasions even during the busiest part of the
summer period when the existing MDL car park is used to capacity for operational

Page 45



purposes. This would suggest that there would be periods of time, particularly out of
these peak weeks when there is capacity within the existing MDL car park for more
shared use of spaces.

The use of spaces in nearby underused car parks such as Fleet Walk is also promoted
in the Local Plan. The applicant considers this would be inconvenient to beholders
potentially affecting the long term viability of the Marina.

The inclusion of parking to serve the residential flats is considered, by the applicant to
be important from a viability point of view as convenient secure parking will increase the
value of the flats. The future success of the hotel is claimed to be heavily reliant on the
availability of car parking close by.

Whilst these requirements might be valid, there is no reason why a more effective use of
the existing MDL car park should not be given greater consideration as it would
substantially reduce the scale and frequency of occupation of Cary Green, would thus
comply more closely with local plan requirements and to some extent mitigate local
objection.

Notwithstanding in principle objections to the level of car parking, Highway Officers have
raised specific concerns about pedestrian/cycling conflicts which are generated by the
use of Cary Green for car parking and have requested design modifications to reduce
conflict. They also raise a need for modelling of traffic flows in relation to the mini
roundabout if car parking is included on the site.

Any parking will need to satisfy requirements in relation to disabled drivers and the
provision of electric charging points and there will be a need to include provision for
cycling to ensure that the site is developed in as sustainable way as possible.

In terms of the impact on the Conservation area and setting of nearby listed buildings,
and in recognition of the strength of public feeling, officers sought to find a compromise
to the future of Cary Green in terms of its design and management to deliver more of a
public space and to confine its use to those times that were shown to be operationally
necessary.

The concept of a ‘French Square’ with a good quality hard and soft landscape scheme,
trees and good quality street furniture would create a space that could accommodate
overspill car parking when required but would otherwise lend itself to recreational use,
allow it to be used for events and markets and would, depending on the quality of the
final scheme and the extent and nature of the parking deliver a place that would not
harm the Conservation Area or the setting of listed buildings.

It is essential therefore to consider whether the quality of the scheme is good enough
and whether the public use of the space is guaranteed in any meaningful way.

Page 46



9. Is this loss mitigated by the quality of the replacement scheme, the
proposed public use of the space and is this secured in any
meaningful way?

There have been long term outstanding issues with regard to the quality of the space,
the degree to which the public are guaranteed access to it and the heads of terms to
secure this.

a) Quality of the Replacement Space.

As originally submitted the design of the replacement space did not lend itself to public
use and enjoyment at times when not in use for parking. It left an irregularly shaped area
which would have been the space the public would have had the ability to ‘use’ as a
public space and for events. It did not have any of the qualities that a successful public
space should have. It had no relationship to its surroundings, no focus and was simply
‘left over’ space. In terms of finish, it was proposed to use bound gravel for surfacing the
car park and to do little to the adjacent areas of public realm leaving a ‘patchwork quilt
effect’ of varying surface treatments.

It was not considered that this approach was good enough. The gravel finish was neither
robust enough for the likely use or visually appropriate for this context and the lack of a
comprehensive response to the treatment of this new space meant the visual quality of
the space was poor with adverse impacts on the historic environment.

In response to this concern the applicant suggested an alternative of ‘conservation
grade tarmac’ across a wider area which was even less suitable as an approach for this
sensitive location. It was suggested to the applicant that the resurfacing should be
extended to include the wider area in a more comprehensive and cohesive approach to
improve the setting of listed buildings and that it should include natural stone setts and
granite paving to tie in more closely with the local palette of materials and those to be
used immediately adjacent to the Pavilion.

Such an approach was supported by the Principal Natural Environment Officer but the
applicant considered this unaffordable and unnecessary.

This position has recently been modified and the resurfacing is now to be wholly in
granite setts and paving and the treatment is to be extended to the frontages of adjacent
listed buildings replacing the existing herringbone setts and overcoming concerns about
the ‘patchwork quilt’ effect. Whilst this is acceptable as a matter of principle there are a
number of design matters that need further thought, for example, whether a darker
colour stone would be preferable in terms of reducing staining, the species and layout of
hedging and trees, the quality of the street furniture and some physical means of
controlling random parking. These matters could be secured by condition.

As has been noted in previous sections, the extent of resurfacing could be usefully

Page 47



extended to include the area between Offshore and the new stone work abutting the
northern elevation of the proposed building and alongside 1 Palk Street. As explained
above, it is suggested that the extension of resurfacing abutting the northern elevation of
the new building is delivered upfront whilst the latter is included as a ‘deferred
contribution’ to be delivered if the profitability of the scheme is better than anticipated.

The design of the space is also rationalised to provide a better relationship to existing
routes and focal points which will facilitate and encourage public use of a majority of the
space when not needed for car parking. This revised layout concentrates hotel car
parking to the west of the site adjacent to the busy road and on an axis with the Pavilion
and the more sporadic MDL berthholder parking to the eastern part of the site.

Following agreements in relation to the car parking strategy this space will only be
available to MDL for parking during the Easter weekend, June July and August and only
then when the whole of the MDL car park is fully occupied by MDL berthholders. Thus
the eastern part of the new space will be available for the public to use for a majority of
the year.

The previous layout generated conflicts between the car park layout showing 74 spaces
and the proposed landscape scheme with insufficient space available for trees to be
planted yet alone survive. These concerns have been ameliorated in the revised layout
and the design now reinforces the public nature of the space and underpins the
‘overspill’ nature of the car parking.

In terms of highway comments, they consider that the revised scheme eases conflicts
inherent in the previous layout but wish to see provision for disabled users and electric
charging points introduced along with adequate provision for cycle parking. They
consider that pedestrian safety needs further thought and can be achieved with
bollards/changes in surface material. They have no in principle objections to the kerb
modifications but require modelling/more detailed plans for confirmation.

b) Proposed public use.

The use of the space for parking needs to be tied to that which is shown to be necessary
for operational reasons and for as restricted a period as possible in order to comply with
town centre car parking policies. The submitted car park strategy indicated in summary
that Cary Green could be used for car parking by MDL during peak months defined as
March- October when the existing car park was 80% full and by the hotel for 12months
of the year.

A more detailed assessment of operational need was requested to help define when
peak months were and to assess whether the needs for car parking could be met though
more shared use of the existing car park. This information has been requested since the
original application was submitted in 2014.

In the absence of any reliable data confirming the scale of use of the MDL car park it
was put to the applicant that the peak weeks should be confined to those times that are

Page 48



demonstrably busy i.e. Easter weekend June July and August (rather than March-
October) and that MDL should not occupy any spaces on Cary Green unless both
decks of the MDL car park are 100% occupied by berthholders (i.e. no pay and display
use) and that outside this defined period these areas are primarily devoted to public use.
It was also suggested that the hotel car parking should only take place on Cary Green
during the defined summer period and that outside this time hotel car parking should be
accommodated within the existing MDL car park. This would free the whole of Cary
Green for public use and enjoyment for a more substantial part of the year.

The applicant has agreed to the more restrictive periods of occupation for MDL but has
not agreed that the hotel car parking should use the existing MDL car park outside the
defined peak weeks. The applicant claims it is essential that hotel guests can park on
the spaces allocated for hotel use on Cary Green all year long and the matter is non-
negotiable.

It must be noted that no firm evidence has been supplied regarding the ability (or
otherwise) of the MDL car park to accommodate the hotel car parking outside the peak
weeks which would lend some support for the need for Cary Green for hotel car parking
during the winter months. However the revised strategy, whilst not ideal, does mean that
the eastern part of Cary Green is only used for car parking for restricted periods and
only when there is a clear operational need as Cary Green cannot be used unless
berthholders occupy 100% of both decks of the existing car park.

This revised strategy would in effect exclude public ‘pay and display’ use of Cary Green
which would be significant from a planning point of view. The loss of this valued green
space would be difficult to justify to provide public car parking which is not exactly in
short supply in the area.

There will be a need to monitor the use of Cary Green to ensure compliance with the
strategy and to ensure that ‘valet parking’ does not result in the hotel spaces being
‘bank parked’ to allow inclusion of more than 32 vehicles. This will need to be dealt with
by conditions and an appropriate monitoring contribution to be included in the s106
agreement.

The use of Cary Green for parking is only supportable in policy terms if the quality of its
design is exemplary, if there is evidence to support operational need that cannot be
accommodated through shared use of existing facilities, it shown to be clearly necessary
for delivery of this scheme and the use of Cary Green for overspill car parking is
minimised.

It is considered that following recent improvements to the quality of the scheme and the
revised car parking strategy which secures use of Cary Green (generally) when
operationally required then the scheme is now acceptable and represents a significant
improvement on the original submission.

Whilst the scheme in relation to Cary Green is now considered broadly acceptable it
could be improved if the grass verge alongside Cary Parade were included within the

Page 49



application site. This would allow the permanent hotel car parking to be shifted towards
the Cary Parade which would maximise the amount of space to be made available
primarily for public use. It would be important however to introduce hedging and
substantial tree planting along the back edge of pavement to screen the visual impact of
vehicles. The inclusion of this additional space would also allow better provision to be
made for bin storage for the commercial units on Vaughan Parade which currently
occupy the foot of the Ziggurat.

It may also be possible to re-use some of the existing Palm Trees in the proposed soft
landscape scheme which would provide some landscape continuity.

In addition to the major issues as set out in sections 1-9 above, there are a number of
design and functional concerns, these are:

10. Does the height of the structure result in unacceptable ‘shadowing’
of the harbour and adjacent premises or create wind funnelling?

This has been a key concern for many respondents and climatic studies have been
requested for many months to show to what extent the building will overshadow nearby
premises and whether there will be any impact on wind funnelling.

The impact of shadowing on the harbour and on adjacent premises was originally
evaluated using the 3D model for a series of times throughout the day for the 21st June
and the 21st September. The images show little overshadowing in mid-summer with the
lower terrace block shading only the car park and the new walkway.

According to this study, the shadow of the tower element passed over a corner of the
Pavilion in the early morning and only shaded the development itself without affecting
other properties.

The shadow of the tower was shown to reach across the inner harbour only after 7.00
pm an hour before the sun retreated behind Waldon Hill. This appeared to confirm that
only a small part of Victoria Parade was shaded for a relatively limited period of time in
the late evening with all areas north of Harbour Point unaffected.

However it was considered necessary to have this more robustly tested due to the scale
of concern.

More detailed climatic studies were submitted in January 2017.

In relation to daylight, it is shown that adjacent properties are generally not adversely
affected but that five window locations on the south facing fagcade of Offshore are
affected by the development along with three window locations on the south east
elevation of the Pavilion. The report concludes that the degree of harm is low with only
1% of assessed locations not meeting minimum guidelines. In terms of sunlight, the
report concludes that all window locations tested are acceptable when judged against
industry guidelines. However, this does not deal with the impact of daylight or sunlight

Page 50



on public spaces only the impact on windows.

In relation to wind funnelling, this finds that the tower represents an obstruction to
prevailing south westerly winds over open water and that faster moving upper level
winds ‘impact the fagade’ and are drawn to ground and podium levels as downdrafts and
subsequently channelled along the building front and accelerated locally around building
corners. It finds that the impact of this is mainly felt within the development itself on the
car park deck, some balconies and on the public route at the podium of the tower. It
suggest mitigation in the form of increased landscaping, raised balustrades, balcony
dividing screens. It suggests that the areas removed from the building are little affected
by the impact of wind.

It is disappointing that the information supplied particularly in relation to shadowing
doesn’t deal with the impact of the development on the enjoyment of ‘spaces’ given the
harbour side is valued by the public for its wider amenity value. Specifically the impact
on the outside ‘café’ space associated with Offshore was asked to be investigated along
with any shadowing of Victoria Parade. The applicant has been requested to provide
some updated information in relation to this so that the full impact is understood.
However, it is unlikely based on the preliminary studies considered that it would be of a
scale to justify a refusal of planning permission.

11. Is the construction likely to adversely affect the listed quay walls?

Piled foundations were installed when the existing car park was constructed and it is
anticipated that these can largely be used to support the new development minimising
any impact on the listed quay wall. The same structural engineers, Ove Arup, have been
commissioned to provide advice and there is no suggestion that this will present any
threat to the quay. However a geotechnical report should be secured by condition.

12. Is the design of the ‘bedroom bridge’ linking the Pavilion to the
proposed harbour side hotel acceptable?

An advantage of this scheme is that it provides a new use for the Pavilion as front of
house for the hotel. Clearly this requires it to be physically linked to the hotel and
numerous options have been considered for minimising the visual impact of this
structure. The current location for the link is acceptable as it has minimal impact on the
fabric of the listed building being attached to a more modern extension constructed in
the 1980’s and is largely viewed in the context of a modern car park.

The link however does include displaced bedrooms which are attached to both sides of
the pedestrian link thus creating a more dominant structure than originally anticipated.
The quality of the design is therefore crucial and to lighten the impact of the structure,
the link is separated from the listed building by a lightweight glass box and the sides are
decorated with vertical copper fins.

The applicant has agreed to include a similarly recessed glazed box to the opposing end
of the link to give a more balanced appearance. It is important to review the

Page 51



effectiveness of the copper fins in terms of visually integrating this structure. It is also
important to carefully consider the underside as this will be widely viewed. The plant
previously located on the roof has been relocated.

13. Is the width and design of the new waterside walkway acceptable?

The existing walkway along the harbour side is quite narrow and bounded by the
existing car park. One of the potential benefits of this scheme is the opportunity to
upgrade the quality of this experience. It is proposed to include A3 restaurant uses
opening onto an elevated terrace at a half storey above the existing walkway and to link
the two with a series of terraced timber steps and ramps. It is also intended to widen the
existing walkway by 300mm through a small extension of the walkway over the Harbour
wall. This will introduce a more modern finish to this part of the harbour in terms of
materials and enclosure. The principle and design is not favoured by several objectors
on the grounds of its untraditional appearance and the creation of pinch points.

The applicant has supplied further information in respect of the pinch points which
shows that the existing walkway reduces down to 1.7m in places which is approximately
the same as the narrowest points in the proposed walkway. The width cannot be
increased due to the constraints set by the building. It is also the case that over a
significant part of its length there is greater width (albeit on varying levels) than exists
currently and it presents a much improved pedestrian experience.

The detailed design of the walkway is in need of clarification and a key area of concern,
the loss of the traditional bollards can be mitigated as explained in section 3.

In summary, the bollards, which are attached to the quay have to be removed as the
new walkway is elevated above and extends 300mm out from the existing harbour edge.
This necessitates the use of a more modern lightweight enclosure to the harbour more
akin to that used along Beacon Quay.

If these bollards are used to replace the existing poor quality galvanised railings that
enclose the southern edge of the harbour and the opportunity taken to rationalise the
poor quality railings running alongside Fish Quay to create a more visually consistent
and integrated form of enclosure extending up the bridge then the impact of the loss of
the bollards in this location would be fully mitigated.

14. Does the scheme generate Highway concerns?

The impact of the scheme on the highway network has been assessed and it was
requested that modelling of the roundabout should be carried out if parking took place
on Cary Green. Any modifications necessary to its layout can be secured via a S278
Notice. The revised layout for Cary Green better resolves cycling and pedestrian
conflicts and the need for cycling, electric charging points and spaces for disabled users
can be secured via condition.

Provision for servicing and storage of waste are reflected in the submitted plans and is

Page 52



mainly accommodated within the remodelled MDL car park but a servicing plan, along
with tracking information is required which will ensure that deliveries, collections and
waste removal are carried out in a way that minimises impact on the public highway.

There a number of technical issues that need to be briefly considered.

In respect of flood risk, the EA and the Councils Drainage Engineer are satisfied that if
the scheme is constructed in accordance with the submitted Flood Risk Assessment
then the risk of flooding is not worsened.

In respect of the relationship to the Marine SAC and the need for a Habitat Regs.
Assessment, Natural England have confirmed that providing a Construction
Management Plan is in place then there would be no adverse impact on habitat.

An EA screening exercise has been carried out which confirms that an EA is not
required.

There are no outstanding contamination issues. The site was largely cleared of all
possible contaminants when the car park was constructed in the 1980’s.

S106/CIL -

The scheme should, if shown to be viable, deliver on site Affordable Housing and
Community Infrastructure Contributions in line with Policy H2 in the Torbay Local Plan
the Adopted SPD ‘Planning Contributions and Affordable Housing’. This should deliver
20% affordable housing to be policy compliant. The cost of this if an off-site contribution
was agreed coupled with the community infrastructure contributions would amount to
approximately £2m.

The IVA demonstrated that the viability of the scheme precludes meeting this
requirement. Any increase in the size of the building to generate the extra profit would
increase the harm on the historic environment.

As explained in the body of the report it was considered more appropriate in view of the
need to achieve regeneration of the site, that any surplus profit should be invested in
delivering an improved public realm which is the course followed.

As the scheme will not be providing Affordable Housing or other sustainable
development contributions as required by the SPD, viability must be re-assessed
towards completion of the scheme, when actual figures are available. If the scheme
turns out to be more profitable than originally anticipated, ‘deferred contributions’ will be
payable. In order to mitigate the effects of the scheme the deferred contributions will be
used by the Council as contributions towards future public realm enhancements in the
vicinity of the site.

The site would be liable for CIL if the decision is not issued by the 9™ May. This would

amount to £260,000 which would probably prevent the scheme being implemented. This
does mean that matters have to progress quickly.

Page 53



As has been identified in the text of the report, the s.106 will ensure that the high end
hotel user is guaranteed along with securing local procurement and labour/service
agreements.

Securing public access to and use of Cary Green for events should be reflected in the
s106.

Given the condition of the Pavilion, it would be preferable to see renovation works
started earlier in the process than currently offered. It may be necessary to consider a
Performance Bond or other means of ensuring delivery in the event of financial
problems.

The public realm improvements can largely be secured via a S278 notice and suitable
conditions, the financial contributions towards the Princess Gardens enhancements will
have to be secured via the S106 agreement as will any deferred contributions towards
resurfacing Fish Quay and/or extending the resurfacing of Cary Green and/or the
removal of the Ziggurat and its treatment or other town centre public realm
improvements.

A monitoring contribution towards ensuring the use of Cary Green is in accordance with
the conditions and terms of the car parking strategy will be needed as will an agreement
to ensure that the developer permits use by the public

Any works deemed necessary to the mini roundabout to accommodate parking on Cary
Green will either have to be secured through the terms of the S106 agreement or via a
s278 notice.

Conclusions

The fact of harm to the historic environment cannot be disputed. It is evident in the
responses of statutory consultees, concerns from local residents and the applicants own
consultants who acknowledge a level of harm.

There is a debate about whether this is ‘substantial’ or ‘less than substantial’ but
whatever the level of harm decision makers must understand that there is a duty on
them to preserve and enhance listed buildings, their settings, Registered Gardens and
Conservation Areas all of which are compromised to some degree by this proposal.
There is therefore a strong presumption against planning permission being granted.

Paragraph 134 of the NPPF does allow some harm to the historic environment providing
the harm is outweighed by the public benefits of the proposal. The level of benefit
necessary to justify overriding the presumption against granting approval should be
broadly commensurate with the degree of harm. Substantial harm to the historic
environment would require wholly exceptional public benefit, less than substantial harm
a lower scale of public benefit. However it is not a simple balancing exercise but the
need for a clear justification to override the presumption in favour of preservation.

The extent of harm is a matter of judgment. Officers concur with Historic England that

Page 54



the harm is ‘less than substantial’ but still significant and therefore requires quite an
exceptional scale of public benefit to justify approval.

In terms of public benefit the scheme delivers:

e The restoration of the Pavilion for a beneficial purpose that will secure its long
term future.

e A top end 4* hotel that will significantly enhance the tourist attraction of the town,
deliver jobs and economic growth.

e Creation of a more active edge to the western flank of the harbour in place of the
existing poor quality car park.

e This in turn will facilitate further investment and confidence in an area in need of
regeneration.

e 43 new dwellings that will provide new homes bonus income to the Council

e The predicted provision of 179 jobs and an uplift of 1% in the tourism sector of
Torbay.

In terms of ‘harm’ the scheme would:

e Have a f‘significant’ impact on the quality of the historic environment though
impact on the setting of listed buildings, on the Registered Princess Gardens and
on the character of the Conservation Area.

This impact largely arises from the fifth storey of the terrace building which impedes
public views between the harbour and Princess Gardens and the top 3/ 4 stories of the
tower element of the proposal which creates an imposing presence and inevitably
impacts on a range of public views.

The IVA identified that there wasn’t sufficient profit in the scheme to appreciably reduce
the scale or bulk of the building but there was enough profit to achieve a full developer
return and to deliver a ‘better’ scheme particularly in terms of the quality of spaces
surrounding the building.

It was considered essential, if a scheme of this size was to be acceptable that it
delivered a place making or transformative scale of regeneration. This has now been
secured which helps tip the balance.

In line with tests in the HE Enabling Guidance and Historic England’s advice,
consideration was given to whether these public benefits could be secured in a way that
minimised the level of harm on the heritage asset. The IVA identified that the hotel is
relatively low value which drives the need for a large number of higher value flats to
subsidise the development. This assessment did produce a smaller building which
would have a better fit with its surroundings and subject to design had the potential to
positively enhance the historic environment by replacing the poor quality edge to the
harbour but in a more contextually appropriate way.

Page 55



On the down side, such an option may not come forward and it would inevitably
introduce further delay in resolving the future of the Pavilion. Whilst it would fund the
structural repairs to the Pavilion it would not have secured such a robust long term
future use as front of house for a high end hotel nor would it have delivered the scale of
economic benefit in terms of jobs and growth of the local economy.

In respect of Cary Green, the recently revised scheme for this space, which involves
extensive new granite paving across the whole of the site and the agreement to confine
the MDL overspill parking to a defined period and then only when the existing MDL car
park is 100% occupied by berthholders overcomes concerns about the visual quality of
the space and ensures that public access to and use of the majority of the space is
maximised.

This is a significant improvement from the initial proposal for the use of Cary Green
which involved it being fenced and tarmacked to provide virtually unrestricted car
parking for both the hotel, MDL and ‘pay and display’ parking.

There is a clear emphasis on the need to achieve economic growth in the Local Plan
(and in the NPPF) which identifies the crucial need to create jobs to lift the economic
profile of the Bay. The advice from the TDA about the impact of a refusal of permission
on investor confidence is relevant. Recent figures about increased poverty levels and
deprivation reinforce the need to put economic growth high up the agenda.

Officers are therefore, on balance, of the opinion that the scale of public benefit justifies
setting aside the presumption against approval being granted.

This position has not been reached easily and reflects the need to achieve a speedy
response to the future of the Pavilion and securing a robust and guaranteed future use
for it, the importance of securing a 4* hotel and the vital need for investment, jobs and
reinforcing the Bay as a premier tourism destination.

It is fully recognised in reaching this decision however that the wrong scheme has the
potential in the long run to be hugely damaging to the special quality of the place. Whilst
officers have sought to deliver the best scheme possible bearing in mind issues around
viability and the need for a defined scale of development it is quite legitimate to take the
view that the cost of this development on the historic environment is just too high and
that the application should be refused and the applicants encouraged to submit an
alternative proposal that excluded the hotel and delivered a smaller building that was
easier to accommodate in such a sensitive location.

On balance, it is the recommendation of Officers that the application be approved
subject to further clarification with regard to design detail as explained in the body of the
report, conclusion of a s106 agreement and conditions as detailed below.

Recommendation
The recommendation covers two options; the officer recommendation which is that on
balance approval should be granted and a second option in case Members are minded

Page 56



to refuse permission.

A.

On balance, it is the recommendation of Officers that planning permission should
be granted for the proposal subject to clarification of the impact of ‘shadowing’ on
the amenity of public spaces, revised plans/clarification of detailed design matters
relating to:

Opportunities for mitigating the impact of the lift shaft.

Confirmation that the balconies will be constructed as a continuous curve.
Detail in relation to the harbour walkway and strategy for relocating the
traditional railings and form and extent of new railing detail.

Inclusion of extended resurfacing between Offshore and the stone setts
adjacent to the northern elevation of the hotel building.

External plant in relation to listed building.

And to the conclusion of a S106 agreement at the applicants expense to secure
the following matters and to conditions as detailed below.

In terms of the S106 agreement:

To secure deferred contributions towards future public realm enhancements
as defined in the body of the report namely re-surfacing of Fish Quay, an
extension of the granite paving adjacent to SoHo to an agreed specification
and/or a contribution of £100,000 towards removal and treatment of the
Ziggurat or an alternative key public realm master plan proposal. The amount
of deferred contributions to be assessed and paid in stages and calculated on
the basis of a 50:50 split between the developer and the Council of any
increase in income generated from the site over that predicted in the IVA.
The contribution to be assessed either in relation to uplift in projected sales
values of the residential units (based on Appendix B of the IVA dated 31st
August 2016, specifically the Savills estimates of values); or such other
method agreed with the applicant (e.g. open book accounting of the entire
scheme)

The maximum deferred contribution will equivalent to the full amount of off-
site Affordable Housing and Sustainable Development Contributions that
would ordinarily be payable in accordance with the adopted SPD after
deducting any contributions/costs paid by the developer towards
improvements to the public realm.

To ensure occupation of the hotel by the applicant (or such other suitably-
qualified hotel operator as shall be agreed)

A commitment, in the operation of the hotel, to procurement of local goods
and services as described in the HJA report

A commitment to use of local labour both during the construction of the
development and in the ongoing operation of the hotel

To secure a financial contribution of £30,000 towards enhancements to
Princess Gardens.

To secure the terms of the car parking strategy, public access to Cary Green

Page 57



1.

and agreement for public use of eastern part Cary Green for markets/events
for a minimum of 28 days in any September — May period, consent not to be
unreasonably withheld by the developer, calculation of fees for use to be
agreed.

e To secure an annual monitoring contribution towards ensuring that Cary
Green is used and managed in accordance with the agreed car parking
strategy and that the hotel car park is not ‘bank parked’ as explained in the
body of the report.

e To secure modelling of the mini roundabout and implementation of any
highway works deemed necessary via a S278 Notice prior to any occupation.

e Performance bond (if required).

However, if Members are minded to refuse the application, due to concerns about
the impact of the proposal on the character of the Conservation area and on the
setting of adjacent listed buildings, it is suggested that the following reflects the
key reasons why the scheme could be judged to fail when considered against
national and local plan guidance.

It is considered that the development is harmful to the setting and significance of
key listed buildings, to the setting and significance of the Registered Princess
Gardens and to the character and appearance of the Torquay Harbour
Conservation Area as a consequence of its size, height and design. It will harm
key public views of listed buildings eroding their significance in the townscape
and will act in a way to limit views between the harbour, the Pavilion and the
Registered Park and Garden to their detriment. The public benefits included in the
scheme comprising the restoration of the Pavilion, delivery of a hotel with
attendant economic benefits and provision of new dwellings are, on balance, not
sufficient to outweigh the presumption against approval embodied in s66 and 72
of the 1990 Act As such the scheme is contrary to paragraphs 133 and 134 of the
NPPF and policies SS10 and HE1 of the adopted Local Plan 2012-2030.

Conditions

Prior to commencement of development the submission and approval of an
agreed and specified schedule of works to fully repair and restore the Pavilion
based on the submitted specialist engineers report and the schedule of works
included with the application drawings. The works to be completed in full prior to
occupation of any of the proposed residential units.

No more than 19 residential units to be occupied until the core and shell of the
hotel is completed.

Submission and approval of a phasing agreement which includes a timetable for
delivery of the public realm enhancements as identified in the report and as
included in Plan N0.3152-1-17 SK2 rev A (subject to revised plans and any detail
required by condition) through a S278 Notice. No occupation of any of the

Page 58



residential units until the public realm enhancements have been completed
unless a revised phasing plan is agreed in writing with the LPA.

Submission of a Conservation Management Plan to provide relevant detail with
regard to internal and external works of repair, reinstatement of key features
along with a timetable for delivery. It should also include measures to deliver a 30
year maintenance programme.

Prior to commencement of development to secure a signed lease or other legally
enforceable means to ensure occupation of the hotel by the applicant (or such
other suitably-qualified hotel operator as shall be agreed).

Large scale details of key features

A) Windows/Doors

B) Shopfronts

C) Aluminium framework confirming construction as a continuous curve rather
than faceted and detailing joints/relationship with main structure

D) Balconies confirming construction as a continuous curve rather than
faceted and detail of handrails/ fixings

E) Eaves/roof profiles

F) Fascia’s/Soffits/rainwater goods

G) Elevations of fifth storey

H) Underside of balconies/bedroom link

) Louvres/screens

J) Screening measures for bedroom link.

Samples or detailed specification of all materials to be used in construction of the
building and all hard surfacing.

Full details of all public realm enhancements included in Plan No. 3152-1-17 SK2
rev A and full details of the proposed harbour walkway including strategy for
mitigating loss of traditional railings. The detail to be based on the submitted
concept plans.

Full details of works to Cary Green to include:

a) Specification of materials to be used including colour and treatment to
avoid staining

b) Specification, size and species of tree and hedge planting including 10
year maintenance regime. Proposals to include more substantial tree
planting along Cary Parade and relocation of the trees provided to screen
views of the car park to fully enclose the proposed car parking spaces.
Consideration of re-using existing planting

C) Details of tree pits and all street furniture

d) The means of managing fly parking through appropriate design

e) Inclusion of measures to protect pedestrian safety, provide for disabled
users, include electric charging points and satisfy cycle parking standards.

Page 59



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Full landscape details including species, sizes densities and 10 year
management regime and securing implementation in line with agreed schedule.

The restriction of use of Cary Green in line with agreed strategy, namely to only
allow the use of the area allocated for MDL overspill car parking during the Easter
weekend and throughout June, July and August only and then only when both
decks of the MDL car park are 100% occupied by berthholders.

To ensure that hotel car parking is restricted to defined car parking bays only and
that valet or bank parking on this space is prevented from occurring.

Implementation of all vehicle parking including cycle parking, provision of spaces
for disabled users and electric charging in line with adopted Local Plan policy
prior to operation of the hotel or occupation of the proposed flats.

Full details of all plant and extract systems in relation to the use of the site for
hotel and commercial purposes including external appearance and measures for
satisfying the EHO with regard to odour control and noise emission.

Details of soundproofing of the residential flats to mitigate noise nuisance from
the operation of A3 uses.

Details of shopfronts including a strategy for consistent signage across the entire
site.

Servicing and refuse plan across the whole site including tracking information to
confirm access by larger service vehicles.

Submission of revised Travel Plan to reflect the 30% target required by Strategic
Transport and including measures to secure implementation and review.

Modelling of roundabout and implementation of any works deemed to be
necessary to ensure highway safety via a S278 Notice prior to use of the car
park.

Construction Management Plan to be in place prior to any works including
permitted hours for demolition, piling or clearance taking place on the site.

Submission of a Geotechnical Report in relation to the impact of development on
the quay walls.

The submission of details to secure the provision of adult changing facilities
within the scheme in accordance with ‘Changing Places’ guidelines as agreed in
the applicants email of the 25" January 2017.

Implementation of the approved FRA.

Page 60



24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

Submission of sustainability statement to demonstrate how the proposal meets
the requirements of policy SS14 in the Local Plan.

Timetable for re-instatement of statue.

Any mitigation required to balcony design/soft landscaping to deal with wind
impact.

Sample panel of stone to be made available for approval.
Restriction of the use of commercial floor space i.e. A1, A2, A3.
Prohibition on the siting of satellite dishes on the building by flat owners.

Lighting strategy for the building and public realm.

Page 61



9td

‘@pBeW JJE SJUaW

4 434 220G /! <>mm_lwooﬁm9 LT0S1T -8pn( yarym Ag s1oedwt Jo Juawwssasse ue waojul diay o) Pasn aq 0] ssay1o 3uowe Ajuo |00] 2{2s e ale A3y) Jey) 1eajd axew oipn1s 17 pue Aseang
31va // 9T0Z' 200 -JBUl JO 32.83p 3OS 3neY [|1M saBeuowoloyd asay ] "1X33U0I 1S JBPIM YT UIYIIM E3JE ApNIS 3yl ;ensn)1 djay o1 pasn ase safeyucwojoyd asay
m ‘ON // 8 -'ON 34NSI "aka uewny a8esane ay) 0y Je)Iwis aandadsiad e uasaidas o) Y2124 WwEEST 18 SU3| Wwigs e Buisn esawed Yis [endip e Yllm uye) aue sadew ||y 0IanLs
@ L // IN3SSISSY LIVAINI TYNSIA 8 3dVISANY ‘sueneaol juiodmain udesBoroyd o T aindlg o1 s2j3y
+ NI // a1 SININJOTIA "TTOT PUZZ 1SNENY UO PAIINPUOI SEM JISIA BYIS YY) |_...l_
— - ad 3aISHILYM AVNDHOL Juawdojasp uBisap Jayuing Buimoj|o) a8ueyd 0 1I3[gns ale yaym sjesodosd ssews Buipiing wuaiul Juasasdas sadewt ay) // sajoN
© %
= uswpajle)s ade - ’
Anuum (ToLozTzOHEM 1€1S 95ellISH 3Y3 Ul TIdY JUI0d JUBLUSSISSY YIM PRIUBIYI-SS0JI 34 O] "3)S 8} SPIEMO) 129435 poomuo] ca.,o_.u MBIA - (E£9E9 SFOZ6 XS ‘HON) TO'dA pasodoiy
)
o8 :
o
<<

H
|
|

(To£0ZTZOHEr) uaWe)s adejliay 3y} Ul TIdY 1UI0d JUSWISSBSSY UM PIIUBIBID1-550.2 3q O 3115 B} SPIEMO] 199415 PO0OMIC) UMOP MBIA - (££9€9 SPOZ6 XS ‘HON) TOdA Sunsixg

]

Juoipia1epn Aenbuoy g uotjiaed ayL

Page 62



LEd

434 204
aiva
‘ON
JLL
AN

/!
/!
/!
/!
/!

vASY Z00(80)LT0 S0

910Z°£L0't0

6 - 'ON34NOI4

LNIWSSISSY LIVANI TYNSIA 8 IdVISANY]
a1l SINJINGOTIAIA 3aISHILYM AYNDHOL

‘apew e sjuaw

-2pnl yaym Aq syoeduw) 4o Juawssasse ue waoyu) djay o pasn 2Q 03 s13y30 Suowe Ajuo |00} 2)3uls e ale A3y} Jey) Jea)d ayew oIpnIs 17 pue Azeund

-JeU) Jo 32.83p SWOS BARY (| s3Bejuowojoyd 3S3YL IX3IU0D AN JApIM 3yl uiyum ealse Apnis a3 3ensn|| djay 03 pasn ase sadejuowoloyd asay]

‘249 uewny a8esane ay) 03 Jejwis aanadsiad e Juasaidal 0] JYBPY WwQEgT 18 SU3) WwQs e Buisn eJawed Yis |endip e yum uaxed ale safew ||y 0l0nLS
“suonedo] wwodmai aiydesSojoyd Jo T 2in814 03 Jajay

‘ZTOZ PUZZ IsNEny LU0 PANINPULI SEM JSIA SIS By 9

3wdo|anap udisap saylany Suimo||o) adueyd o3 11algns ase Yo1ym sjesodoud ssew Buip|ing wissiul Juasasdal saBewn ay) // s210N

ﬂ.uqdﬁr N VoS o

YIS 34} 5pJeMO] 133135 POOMIOL UMOP MBIA - (TIFET SBETE XS :HON) Z0'dA pasodoly

83IS a1 SpJemo} 133,15 POOMIOL UMOP M3IA - (T9HE9 SBET6 XS *HON) Z0'dA Sunsixg

o118 Aenbio] %@ uoljiaeg ayL

Page 63



8td

434 004
diva
‘ON
Ll
AN

/
/
/!
//
//

‘apeiwu ale sjuaul

vASY Z00(80)£107 S -3pnl yaiym Aq s30edwr Jo Juawssasse ue wioyu diay o1 pasn 2q 03 ssay20 Buowe Ajuo |001 3j3uis e ase Ayl Jeyl Jea|d axew oIpnIs 17 pue Adeinz
- -JBUL JO 93433 Bwos aney |im saBejuowoloyd 3say] “IXSIU0D S JBPIM 3l ulyum ease Apnis ayy ajensn|p diay 01 pasn ale saSejuowojoyd asay|
.mHON L0'%0 '9A3 uewny a8esane aYy) 03 Jejuis SaRdadsiad e Jussaudal o) WY WWODIT 18 SU| WIS e Susn _IWEd ¥ 1ENBIp B yum uayey ale safew ||y oIanLs
TIT - 'ON 3H4N9I4 ‘suolieso] Jutodmaia ydesdoloyd 1oy T 2inJi4 03 49)0Y
INIWSSISSY LOVAINI TYNSIA 8 3dYISANY "ZTOZ PUZZ 1SN3NY LD PalINPUDI SEM JISIA YIS YL |_M._
a1 SIN3INDOTIAIA FAISYILYM AVNDHOL uawdojanap usisap Jayuny Suimojio) a8ueyd 03 12alqns ale yaym siesodoud ssew 8uipiing W)y Juasaidas saBew) ayy // ssjoN

(T0£0ZTZOH8) 3uawaiers a3eaH 31 Ul TINGY 1ul0d UBLISSASSY Y}iM PROUDI3J31-55013 3] O] "PEOY [[IPled WL INOGIEH 13U 3Y) SSCIIE MIIA PRIBASI] - (E/EE9 SZETE XS :HON) vOdA pasodolg

(10£0ZT2DH8r) uawiRiels 38813 3y Ul TINAY JUI0d JUBWISSISSY Y1M Pa2uaIa}aI-SSOID 3G O "PEOY |[IIEd WOIJ INOGIEH JBUY| BY} SSOIIE MBIA Pa1eA3|3 - (ELEE9 9Z6TE XS :YON) bO'dA Sunsixg

tu. ! - 1 » et -

oupaep Aenbuo) g uoljiaed ay.



6td

‘434 20d
iva
‘ON
FLIL
INFID

/!

/!
/
/!

‘SPEW aJe sjuaw

vARY Z00(80)2107 ST -8pnl yajym Aq s1oedw) Jo JUaWssasse Ue wioyu) djay 0} pash aq o} si3yjo Buowe Ajuo |001 3)Buls e ae ASyl jey) Jeapd axew olpmis L7 pue Adeind
910Z'20°v0 -DBUI JO 3383p 3OS aAeY |jim s3Bejuowoioyd 3s5ay) IXSIU0D 3NS ISPIM IU) LIYUM BAE Apris ayi a1esisn))1 djay o3 pasn aie safejuowojoyd asay)
. "aAa uewny a8esane ayy 03 Jejuns aadadsiad e Juasaidasl o) W39y WwwWwpE9T 1€ 53| Wwps e Susn esawed ¥ 1BHB1p B yum uayey aue safew ||y o10nLS
¢l -"'ON 3¥N9H “suonedn| Jujodmala aydeiBojoyd Joj T 31nJi4 0] 1ajay
LNINSSISSY LOVAINI TYNSIA '8 3dVYISANY "ZT0Z PUZT 15NENY UO PAIDNPUOI SEM USIA 3115 AYL |r|_
411 SINJINdOT13IAIA FAISHILYM AVNDEOL luawdojaaap udisap Jayluny Buimorjoy aBueyd 01 132IQNs aJe Yiym siesodoad ssew Suipjing wBIUL Juasardal sadew) ay) // sstoN

(T0L0ZTZIOHAT) uBWAleIS 3BeIIBH 3Y3 Ul THY IO JUDLUSSASSY YUM PIIURIAYBI-5SOID 24 0] “||!H uoleag WOoJ} UNOGJeH Jauu)

9U1 550408 1S DY} SpIeMOl MAIA - (9K TED 00616 XS :¥ON) SO'dA pasodoug

F

gt

1

-
5 AN

Page 65

AHONONﬁNUIm: usuiajels mm_ma_._mI U] Ul THJY JUl0d JUBLUSSRSSY UM Padua.lajal-5s04d 9q O] ‘||IH vodeag wolj Jnoqdey tauuj ayl s5013e 3115 Yl SPIEMO] MIIA - GQHMQ 00616 XS UKOZV SOdA mc_um_xu

1
| r il o - -~ -3 e B — " F
“ m.l It _.- . . ez} ” E “_ - 5 t . 4 2 .Llnq .“lid.ll ..u.ﬂ‘.ﬂ.vn. W“'«-lf'ﬂ...'l'fl

juoapiaiep Aenbuol g uoljined sy



Tvd
"apew aJe sjuaw

43Y 704 // vA2Y Z00(80)2TOS1] -8pnl yatym Ag syoedwr Jo Juawssasse ue wuoyLn djay o} pasn aq o} sJaio duowe Ajuo [00) 3jduts e aJe Ayl 1ey Jeapd axew oipms )7 pue Azeind

31vd // 9T0Z°£0°+0 -JBul JO 33183p wos aAeY ||1m saBejuowoloyd asayy "IX3IU0D IS JIPIM A} uiyim eate Apnis ays a1ensnijl djay o) pasn ase sadejowojoyd asayy

: . "8Aa uzwny a8esaae ay) 03 Jejwis asndadsiad e Juasasdal 0y W13y wwop9T 1e Sua| Wwws e Suisn esawed Y1s [2USIp e Yam uayey a1e sadewn |y 210015
ON // YT -°"ON 34n5Id "suoneao| Julodmaia aiydesSooyd Joj T 8inSiy 03 Jojoy

ERINN] /! INIJWSSISSY LIVAINIL TYNSIA 8 IdVISANYT "ZT0Z PUZZ I1SNENY UO PBIINPLOI SEM JISIA 3 BYL 1|M.|_

INIID // Q.11 SINIINDOTIAIA AISYILYM AVYNDHOL wawdojanap uSisap sayriny Buimo)joy adueyd 03 193(gns ase Yiym sjesodoud ssews Suip|ing wisaiu) Juasaldas saBew) ay) // sajoN

(T0£0ZTZOHAr) uawaiels a8elaH ayl Ul T1dY JUI0d IUBWISSSSSY YUMm P3JU319434-55010 3 0 UNOGIEH YHON 3Y) 550138 13ld UOP|eH WOJ; AS dY) SPIEMO) M3IA - (ESOE9 EOOTE XS ‘HON) L0dA pasodouy

Page 66

— s

Juoupialep Aenbuo) g uoljineq ay |



crd

"3peW aJe sjual

434 304 // <>mxlmooﬁw8 L107S0 -8pnl yaym Aq s1oedwn Jo Juawssasse ue wioyur djay o} pasn 29 01 51330 Suowe Ajuo (00 3|Buls e ase A3Y] 1ey] 1B3)D axell oIpMS [ pue AJeind

J1va // 91072070 -Jeul jo 3383p awos aney |IIm saBejuowoloyd 353y “IXSIUOD B1IS J3PIM Y] UIYHM B3IE APN)s ay1 alensn|)t djay oy pasn ase sadejuowoloyd asayl

: . *3A3 uewny adesane aY) 0 Jewis aadadsIad e Juasaidal o) JyFey WwoaT 18 SU3J WWOS 2 3usn eJawwes Y15 |eudip e yam uayed aie safew ||y DIanLS
ON /! ST -°ON 3¥NSI4 "suolieac| uodmala aydesBoyoyd Joj T aundi4 03 Joiay

ALl /! INIWSSIASSY LOVdINI TVNSIA 8 3dVYISANY "ZT0Z PUzZZ 1SN8ny UO P31INPUOI Sem JiSIA 3}IS YL |_||_
IN3IITD !/ all SLNINAOTIAIA FAISHILYM AVNDHOL luawdojasap uBisap Jayung Buimojoy 2Bueyd 01 193[gns ase Yarym sjesodord ssew Suiping wialul Juasaiday sadew) ay| f/ saloN

Aemdis Ja1d uop|eH ay} wouy aXs 3y} SPIEMO} MBIA - (E60£9 BTSTE XS ‘HON) 80'dA pasodolg

I

T ] . A 1=t “ STy frwme sy, : { .l i I:d ; LR ] | _|

1" Eh
ol g, e b [ B b r _r.__ M

— e .v.tﬂ._.r &

Iy
-

o { |

B - H _.- = - e B u.
e T . e e g R o L g 16
555G e el _ Doy S A SRR U b | Lo g s 1
ol a i 0 g £ 4 R s

L EL S
H &

Pt

4 B

[

Aemdyjs 314 uOp|eH aY) WOy aYis 3Y) SpJemo) MIIA - (E60E9 BTRTE XS :HON) 8O'dA Sunsixg

o E—

..... T, et S T ; = %N

Juoipaiep Aenbuo) g uoijineq ayy



Ebd

"3pew a.Je sjuaw

434 300 \\ <>wleoo~w9 LTOTS1 -Bpnl yoiym Aq s1oedwy Jo Juawssasse ue uuoju diay 01 pasn aq 03 519430 Suowe Ajuo |00 3|2uis e ase Aay) Jey) Jeapd Ixyew oIpms 1 pue Adeiny

1va /! 910Z'L0't0 38Ul 0 33,33 3OS 3AeY |jIm saBejuowoioyd asay L *IxBIU0D 2US 1APIM YL UIYIM ease Apnis 3y ajesisn)) djay 0) pasn ale sadejuowojoyd asayy

. . "aAa uewny a8esane ay] 01 Jejiwis aandadsiad e juasaidal 0} Y3PY WWOOIT 1€ Su3f WS @ Fuisn BIFWED YIS [EN31p e yum uaye) ale salew |y olanLs
ON // 9T - 'ON 3¥N9(4 ‘suoneo| Jujodmala aiydesSojoyd Joy T 20314 03 19)9y

J1LL /! INIINSSISSY LIVANI TVNSIA 78 3dVYISANYT "ZTOZ PUZZ ISNENY UO PIINPUOD SeM JISIA B1IS I L .._u

INIID // 11 SLNINJO13AIA IQISHILYM AVADYHOL Juawdo@aap udisap Jayung Suimo)|o) a8ueyd 0} 19alqns a1e Yaym sjesodosd ssew Suip)ing Wudw Juasaidas saBew) ay ) /] sa10N

Aenp uodeag wouy axis ay) spJemoy MaIA - (SLTEY EEBTE XS *UON) 60°dA pasodoig

s .1], e T i

Aenp uodesg Wouy 23S 34} SPIEMO) MBIA - (SLTEI EESTE XS HON) 604dA Sunsixg

" -

i __1114.”.
~ BRON

——— S— |

Woup31eAp Aenbuio] g uoljined By



d

434 20d
iva
‘ON
JL
IN3D

vA3Y Z00(80)L10 S11

910Z'20°v0

LT -"ON 34N9I4

LNIWSSISSY LIVANI TYNSIA 8 3dVISANY]
a1l SIN3INJOTIAIA IAISHILVM AVNDAEOL

"apewW aJe syuaw
-3pnl Yaiym Aq s1redwy Jo Juswssasse ue wioyu djay o3 pasn 84 03 s12y10 Juowe Ajuo |00) 3|3uls e ase A3L Jey Je3 Bjew oipnis |1 pue Axeunz
-38U1 JO 92.33p SWOs 3A.Y |)Im saBejucwoloyd 3s3YJL “KAIUGD YIS JIPIM BY] UIYHM BIIe Apnis a3 ajensn) diay 01 pasn ase saBeuowoloyd asay

"2Aa uewny adesane ay) o) Je||wis 2ARdadssad e Juasaidal 0] JyFBY WWORIT 18 SU3) WwQS e Buisn e1aWeED YIS [B)ISIP B YIim uaxe] e saFew v olants
‘suojeno] Julodmala aydesdoroyd so) T 30814 0] 1949y
"T10Z PUZZ JSNBNY U0 PAIINPUOD SEM JISIA 3)S Y| |_W_

Wwawdojaaap ug|sap Jaylny Suimoyjo) 38ueys oy 193lgns ase yaym sjesodosd ssew 8uip)ing wpsiur Juasaidas saew) ayy // saloN

(T0£0TTZOHE) Juawsaiels a8eNIaH 3Y) Ul ZidY UL JUBWISSASSY YIM P33U31343.-s5013 2q 0] "3Bp1Iq uelIsapad 3yl JO 1Se3 YINOS 3Y3 O} J3ld YINOS WOIY M

(T0£0ZTZOHAr) JuBWalels 3FeILISH DY) Ul Z[dY U0 JUBLISSISSY LM PS2ua.3}3.-55012 3 Of "38plq UeLIISIPad BY3 JO 158D YINOS BY) 01 J3ld YINOS WO MBIA - (BIZEY 66LT6 XS 'HON)

|2

X

2 il

A - (89Z€9 66LT6 XS ‘UON)

0T 'dA pasodoud

0T'dA Junsix3

——, i n

{
{

Juoupraiep Aenbuo) 13 uolineq ayy



avd "3PEW 348 UL
134 700 <>mm_lmooamov L107S1] -3pn{ ya1ym Aq syoedun Jo Judwssasse ue waoyul di2y 0 pasn aq 0} siayyo Buowe Ajuo |00z afBuis e aJe Asy) 1By} Jeap ajew oipnis I pue Adeina
11va 910Z°L0V0 -JBUI JO 32483p 3wWos aney |jim saBeyuowoioyd asay “Ixajuod aYIs J9PIM BYI LIYIIM BaIR Apms ay3 ajensny) djay oy pasn ase saejuowoloyd asay
‘ON 8T - ‘ON I4NDH "aAs uewiny aBesaae ay; o1 Jejiwis aanadsiad e Juasasdas o) Y81y WwQE9T 18 sua| WwWQS e uisn e13Wed YIS 1en8ip e yum uaye) aue safew |y

‘suonedo] Julodmala sydesSoroyd so4 T 2inBy4 o) Jayay
J1IL 1NIWSSISSY LOVdINI TVNSIA 8 AdVYISANYT "ZT0Z puZZ IsnSny U P3INPUOI Sem JISIA IS By I_M._

INTTD Aa11 SININJO13IAIQ 3AISHILVM AVNDHOL juawdojanap uBisap sayliny Buimo||oj adueyd o] 1algns ale Yarym sjesodoud ssew Buip|ing wisaiul Juasasdas safew ayL /f saioN

olangs

- 1 s . : y e = s i : —

{T0£02T2IH8r) Wawalels 53e11aH 3y} ul 794V IO JUILISSISSY Y3IM PIJUIYBI-SSOII 3q O) 122135 Y|ed UMOP pue puelis ay) Ss0.3e 13343S 193]4 JO PU BY3 WOy MBIA - (965E9 6EBTE XS :HON) TT'dA pasodoiy

| 32 BEpmennes S | RERGY (R T —_—
g AR

AﬂOhONHNUIma ucm_.:wumum wmmu_._mI m_._u....__NU&(uEO&uC&Emmme(:#g ﬁwu:m._mﬁw._-mmohumnO._...‘..mw.humv__mﬁ._ cgo_u_u_._mﬁcm._umw_._umm.ugum“wwbm uww_u_mnvtcwwr_urco._..—gw_\/- Ammmmw mmmHme nm_.__.uzv HH.&> m:_am_xm

- —— — e .
- - | B o —
o § 5 ] = , . — : E T I T e
e g R LR ) ; : LTI Ty
o - .,L,_..Filyr........mké.f.!.ﬂ...!. -
VRS ] o
! =

\.\&W\o E

o

P 5 3 i w r
3 ....ﬂ”.w._....".u. i

2O |

-
L

Juoupilepn Aenbuoy g uoljined sy




9td
"apew 3Je sjuaw

434 704 // <>mxl~oonwov LTO7S1T -3pnl yaiym Aq s1oedw o Juswssasse ue wJojut di3y o) pasn 3q 01 s2ay10 Suowe Ajuo [00] 3(3uts e a1e A3yl ey Jea)d axew opnis 17 pue Asesnd

31va /I 910Z'£0'%0 -3eul Jo 33183p 3wWwos aey |m sadejuowoyoyd 953Y] "IXBIU0D 3115 JAPIM 3Y] UIYUM BBIR APNYS DY B3RSyl djay 0) pash ase sadeyuowojoyd asay

. . "8Aa uewny a3esane ay) o1 Jejis aandadsiad e Juasaidsl oy W3y wwEQ9T 1€ sud| Wwis e Juisn elawed y1s [EH3IP € ylim uaye) 3ue saBew ||y 910nLS
ON /! 6T -"ON 3¥N9H "suonelo| Juiodmain ydesdoyoyd Joj T aunBi4 03 Jojay -
JLIL /! LINIWSSISSY LOVdAINI TVNSIA 8 3dVISANY "ZTOT PUZZ ISNENY U0 PRIINPUOD SEM JISIA 3YS BYL .._||_
INIITD !/ aLl SIN3INdOTIAIA IAISHILYM AVNDHOL Juawdo|anap udisap saywny Supmo(jos a8ueys oy yeiqns ase yaym sjesodozd ssew Suipjing wizjul Juasardas saBew ay) // sajoN

peoy J31|jadjuojy Wwouy s 3y) spIemol M3IA - (FT9EY YTETE XS ‘HON) ZT'dA pasodoid

¥

peoy Jal||adiuo|N wouy a1s 3y Sp1emol M3IA - (YTIES FTETE XS :HON) ZT'dA Sunsixg
- 14. W B v

(1] .—-uu—

if

Juosiaiepm Aenbuo] g uoljined ayy

Page 71



Lbd
"BpEW 3UE SJUBW

434 700 // <>wxl~oonwov LT07S1] -3pnlysym Ag s1oedun Jo Juawssasse ue wuoyu) djay o3 pasn 2q 0 513410 3uowe Ajuo |00) 3|8uis B die A3y} JBY) JeapD New oIpms 1 pue Aseans

31va /] 9T0Z"L0b0 -2eUI J0 33183p 3wWOs aaey s saBejuowoloyd 3say] “IXIU0I ANS Japim ayy uiyum ease Apnis ay3 alensmy) disy o1 pasn are saejuowoyoyd asayl

; . ‘8Aa uewny adesane ay) 03 Je(iwis angradsiad e Juasaidal o) W33y WwOEIT e Sud| wwps e Suisn eJawed yis (endip e Yum uayel ale sadew ||y olonLs
ON /! 0 -"'ON 3dNSH "suoyedo| Jutodmala J1ydesBoloyd 1of T 2in314 0] JaaY

Ll !/ INIWSSISSY LIVdINIL TYNSIA 8 IdYISANY "ZT0Z PUZZ 1SNBNY U0 PANPUOI SBM JISIA 335 3y |_||_
IN3ID /! all SININdOTIAIA IAISHILYM AVNDHOL Wawdo|aaap udisap sayriny Buimolioy aBueys 03 dalgns ase yaiym sjesodosd ssew dulp(ing w3l Juasaidal sadewn ayL // sa1oN

AHDNON.HNUIm: jusweaiels wmmu_._w_u_ 33 ul TNdY 1ulod luzlussassy Yiim paldualajal-ss01d 2q o} ‘Yyaanyn S,UYof “15 0} 2Juesjus 2yl pue peoy -_m___wn_“co_)_ wolj alis ay] SpJEeMO] MaIA - Ammmmm 09816 XS “M_GZV €ETdA UWMOQOL&
BF B ST TR oy

. ey 30
LEH =R . n.@_ u’.

Page 72

(TOL0ZTZOHEN) Juswaiels a8el1aH ay3 ul TNJY UI0d JUBLWSSASSY YUM padu
&L B =N 2 e,
amy . SR e B o %

81943.-550.2 3q 0L "Y24nYyJ 5,uyof "35 03 BIULIIUB 3} pue Peoy J31|;3dIUoIN WO BlIS dY) SPIEMO) MIIA - (ES9E9 098TE XS IHON) ETdA Bunsix3

L LY )

—
3ol
k-1, -

i~
= 1.

T

]
b
chiy

[

juoapaiep Aenbuo) g uolineg ay|



8td "3pew aJe sjusw
434 704 <>mmlmooﬁwov LTO7SI -Bpnl yarym Aq spredwt Jo Juswssasse ue waoyur djay o} Pasn aq 0] 51310 Fuowe Ajuo |00) 3j3uls e ase Aayy 1By JE3|d IeW 0IpnIS 1] pue Axend
31va 910Z'/0'%0 -JBUI JO 22133D JWOS aney [im saBejuowoloyd 3say) “IxSIUC 3YS J3PM 3Y3 ulynm eale Apnis ay) azensny|y djay o3 pasn ase saejuowoioyd asay)
ON 1Z - ‘ON JHNOI3 "8A3 uewny aBesane 3y 01 Jejiwis andadsiad e yuasaidal o) JyJiay WwgoaT 1e sua) wwgs e uisn esawed yYis [ENSIP B Yum uayes ale sadew ||y

"suoyelo| Jujodmala JydesSoloyd 10y T 2n814 0y JEIEN|
ERNNNR LININSSISSY LOVAINIL TYNSIA '8 3dVISANY "ZTOZ PUZZ IsnSny UC PAINPUOI SEM YISIA BYIS By

INID aL1 SIN3INdOIIAIA IAISHILVM AVNDHOL uawdojzaap ugisap Jayiny Suimoioy aBueys 01 13algns a1e yiym sjesodosd ssew Buipping wyaul Juasardas safiews ay) // sajoN

SUBP.BY SS3JULlJ SSOJIE 31183y | SSBIULIJ JO IPIS UIBISED U] WIOIY BYS Y} SPIBMOT MIIA - {F8FED SZSTE XS 'HON) vTdA pasodosy

Juoiprazep Aenbuoj g uoljined ayy




6tvd
"3pEW aJe sjuaw

434 300 // <>wm_lmooamov L107SI) -8pnl ya1ym Ag s12edw} JO JUSWISSISSE LR WO diay 01 pasn aq o3 siayjo Suowe Ajuo ooy 3|8uls e 318 Aayi jey) seap ayew oipnis 17 pue Adesnd
31va // 9T0Z'20°+0 -Jeul 40 33183p ILI0S 3AeY |Im saBejuowoloyd 3S3Y “IXBIUOI S JIPIM BYI LIYNM IR Apmis ay s3ensn)t djay o3 pasn ase saeuowoyoyd asay)
; . "8 uewny a8esane 3y} 0 Jejws sapdadsiad e Juasaidal 0} B2y WwwEQE9T 1e U3 WWOS B Suisn esawed Yis [eN81p e yum uayes aie safewl ||y gIanLs
ON /! ¢Z - 'ON 3¥noH ‘'suoyedo| Jutedmaia aiydesdoloyd Joy T 24n3)4 0 JajaY
FILIL /! ININSSISSY LOVAINIL TVNSIA 8 IdVISANY] "ZT0Z PUZZ 1SNBNY UO Pa)INPUOD SEM USIA 3Y1S YL _ |_H._ _
INIID /! QL1 SINIINAOT1IAIAQ 3AISHILYM AVNDHOL uawdolanap udisap say1iny Buimo||of adueyd 03 13lgns a2k Yym sjesodoid ssew duip|ing widiu) uasaidas sadews sy // sajoN [

Su3pJeo adelsa) |eAoy BA0QE ||IH UOP|BAA UO YIed)0o) Y3 WOl MBIA P21eA3)3 - (S95E9 /95T6 XS :UON) STdA pasodouy

(5.
_.r. .wrn.ﬁtug = E
Al W%

SUSpJe9 2Je.131 [BAOY BAOQE [IH UOP|EM UO Y3ed100) BY] WOL MBIA PRIBA3|T - (SISET L9ST6 XS SHON) ST dA Sunsixg

Y

o

Juoupa1ep Aenbuo) 1 uoljiaed ayi



0Sd
‘apew ale sjuau

434 700 // <>wxl~ooam9 LT07S1 -Bpnl yoym Ag s3aedwn Jo JuBWISSISSE LB wuojuy di2y 03 pasn aq o) s1aylo Suowe Ajuo [001 3j3uls e ase Aayy 1eu) seap axyeW 0IPNIS 17 pue Axesna

e -JBUl JO 32453p 3WOS aey ||Im saBejuowoloyd asay] “Ixa1u02 SUS JIPIM BY] UILHM eale Apnis aya a3ensn|! djay 01 pasn aue saejuowooyd asayy
m.cqn. 1 .mHoN £0'v0 "aA3 uewny aBesaae ayy 03 Jejiuns aanadsiad e Juasaidal 03 1Sy WWQQEYT 18 SU3) WwWQS e Busn e13wed Y15 [eNSIp e yum uaxel ase sadew |y oIanLs
ON /1 € -'ON 3¥NoOH "suoieao| Juiodmaia stydesJorloyd soy T aindiy o1 Jayay
3L /! INIINSSISSY LOYINIL TVNSIA '8 3dYISANYI *ZTOZ PUZZ 1SN3NY UO PAIINPUOD SEM JISIA 3YIS YL 1]
INIIMD !/ ALl SLNINJOT1AAIA FQISHILYM AVNTDHOL wawdoaap usisap 1ayiny Buimolios adueyd o3 1afgns ale yaym sjesodosd ssew Buip|ing Wy Juasasdas sadew ay) // sajoN

JudWa3els 3FLIUBH Y1 Ul £4dY JUIOd JUBLISSISSY YNM PIJUBISBI-S50.0 3 O “|jIH UOP|EA UO SuapieD 2Jeut3) (eAoy aAoge sdals aaueljua ayl Wolj Mata pa)y

e —

BA3(3 - (TO9E9 Z6VT6 XS HON) 9T dA pasodoiyd

o

1udWa3e)s 93eILBH B3 Ul £1dV JUI0G JUBWISSISSY UM PIIUDIBJBI-SSOID 3q O “||IH LOP|EM UO Suapieg ade.ta) [eAoy anoge sdals 3IURIUD DY) WOLY MIIA PAIBA3[T - (TOFED Z6HTE XS 1Y DN} 9T dA Bunsixy

e

Juoupia1ep Aenbuo) g uoyiaed ay|



09d

‘Bpew aJe sjuaw
434 J0Q <>mml~ooamov LT07S1] -8pnl yaiym Aq s1oedwy Jo Juawssasse ue wioyur djay o3 Pasn aq 0] 51310 uowe Ajuo |00} 3j3uls e a1k Aay) Jey) Jeajs ayew o1pMms |7 pue Adeuna
IV 910Z' 2040 -JBUJ JO 9385p JW0S aaey |im s3BEJUOLWOTOY 353L "IXBIUOI BYS JSPIM BYT UIYNIM Bale Apnis ayy ajensnyi djay o} pasn ase safeluowoioyd asay
d "8Aa uewny adesane ay3 0] Jejwis aandadsiad e yuasaidal 03 1Ty wwgogT 38 SU3| WWQS e Buisn eJaued ¥1s [eNSIP e ypm uaye) ale safewn v olants

.Oz €€ - 'ON 3¥NOI ‘suoyedo| Jutodmaia Jjydesdoloyd Joy T 21nB14 03 J3)0Y
L LNIWSSISSY LIVAINI TVNSIA 8 IdVISANY ‘TTOZ PUZZ 1SN3NY UD P3IONPUOI SEM YSIA 3)1S BY) “ |_H.._ _

INIITD all SLNIWNDOT13IAIA JQISHILYM AYNDHOL awdajanap ud)sap Jaypny Suimoljoy s8ueyd o3 1fgns a1e YIIym sjesodold ssew 3uip|ing wsBjul Yuasasdal saBewn ayy // sajoN

A1134 Aenbuo) 03 weyxug ay3 wouy a3 ay) SPJemol MIIA - (929 HT6 XS :HON) 92 dA pasodoid

5 iy

ot

; .._@ mtiwu

=3l Wbl |

i s
=

—>in, Sy
=45
L
P e
oot datbte - . 2

-f.-h.‘

A1ay Aenbio) 03 weyxig ay3 wody a1s 3Y3 SpIemo} M3IA - (929 116 XS :YON) 9Z'dA Sunsixg

v Sra B ¢ ._ S g FA

-nr...mﬁmm.hmmwrﬁum; [ . - £ s . RHH.HHH..»-“I ..,...m ..n.ﬁi 5 :
m.......ﬁ.wﬁcu . : ‘ ... . . " u..n _n__-u\'.fw g Fr

Joupalep Aenbuo) g uolined ayl




T9d

‘apew aJe sjusw

434 D04 // <>mml~ooﬁw9 LT07S1] -3pnl yajym Aq spedwy Jo Juswssasse ue waoyu) djay 63 pasn 80 03 s1230 Juowe Ajuo |00} 3|3uls e 318 ASY] Jeyl Jeapd axew olpms 17 pue Adeind
31V // 910Z°20'70 -2Bu| Jo 33133p 3wWos aAey | saBejuowoioyd asay) "xa1u0d alls Japim a3 ulylim ease Apnis ayy a1ensn)| djay o) pasn ase safejuowojoyd asay)
‘ON 1/ bE - 'ON 34NOI "3A3 uewny aJesane ay3 03 Jejiws aanadsiad e Juasaidas o) YSiaY WwppgT 18 SU3| WS € Buisn eISwed YIS [ENZP e yum udye] aJe saBewr ||y olanis
"suoyelo| Julodmaia 21ydesSojoyd Joj T 24814 0) NETER
1L /! ININSSISSY LOVdIWI TVYNSIA '8 3dVISANYT “TTOZ PUZZ 15A3NY UD P3IINPUOD SEM 1ISIA B)IS ay) |_||_
INIITD I/ a1 SIN3IINAOTIAIA FAISHILYM AYNDHOL awdogaasp udisap Jayuny Sumoios a8ueyd o3 333lgns ase YaIym sjesododd ssew dup)ing wisyul Juasvdal saBewn ay) // ss10N
A pasodoliy

A1i3y Aenbio) o3 weyxug ay) woly ayis ayy spJemol M3IIA - (TZ9 SI6 XS ¥ON) L2d

e =
2 g ey = W
— A — By .
s = -1 > o g

......

gl

_ ) _ :

dA Bunsix3

e —

A1s3) Aenbio) 0y weyxiig ayy wioy ays 33 SpJemol MIIA - (TZ9 ST6 XS "HON) L2

- Pt

— e
|

juoupiaiepn Aenbuof g uoipaed ay |

‘Page 77



9d "3PEW aJe Sjuaw
J34 704 7 <>mxl~ooawo_ LTO7S1T -8pnl yatym Aq syoeduw Jo Juawssasse Le wiojul djay 0} Pasn aq 0 s13yjo Suowe Ajuo 1003 318uis e ase A3y 1eY) 483D AYEW OIPMS I pue Adeind

IV // 9T0Z°20°40 -2eul JO 32433p WOS aAeY J|Im saBeuowoloyd 353YL "IBIUOD IS JAPIM YL UIYIM BAIR APNYS Y1 31ensny) djay o) pasn 3ue safejuowojoyd asauy

; . "9A3 uewiny a3e1aae ay; o3 Je|wis aandadsiad e Juasaldal o) JyBiay WWQQ9T 18 SUB| WwQS B 3uisn eiawed Y15 |eu3ip e y1m uasey ase safew ||y olanLs
ON /! LE -"ON J4NOId "suoneao) Juiodmaya siydesSoloyd 1oj T 2nd14 0] JajaY

JLL /! ININWSSISSY LOVdIAIL TYNSIA B 3dYISANY "ZTOZ PUZZ 15N3NY UO P3)INPUBI SEM JISIA 3115 BYL |_||_
IN3JIND // a1l SININJGOTIAIA 3AISHIALYM AVYNDHOL wawdojaa3p usisap 4au1ny Suimoljo) aBueys o} 1aiqns a.e yaym sjesodoud ssew Buppng wirajur Juasasdas ssfew) ayy // sajoN

MBIA uoLIeA 1e yaed Jed Ae|dsip g Aed ay3 jo yoap Jaddn 3y} wouj 3s ay) SPIEMO] MBIA - (Z9S€9 v0T6Z XS :UDON) OEdA pasodoig

Page 78

ﬂﬁ_ﬂnu.._n.

Juoupiaiepn Aenbuo) g uolijined ayp



Sad
"SPELL BUE SJUaW
434 J0q vARY Z00(80)2TOSLT -Bpnl ya1ym Aq sjaedwit Jo Juawssasse ue wioyuy djay o) pasn aq 0} 51930 Auowe Ajuo j00} 3j8uss e aJe ABy) JeY) Jeapd axew o1pnIsS 1 pue Aseina
J1va 9T0Z'L0+0 -Deul Jo 22.39p awios aney |Iim saBejuowoloyd asay IS0 S JapIm 3yl ululim eale Apnis ay) jensny) diay oy pasn e sadejuowoloyd asay)
- . "8Aa uewny a8esane ayy 03 Jejjwis sanpadsiad e Juasaidal 01 Y32y WWQQIT Ie SU3) WWQS e Buisn eiawed ¥1s |endip e yiim uaye) aie sadew ||y DIanLs
ON 8E -'ON 34NOI4 "sucyeso) uiodmata 3jydesSoroyd 104 T ainBi4 03 sajay -

J1LL INIFNSSIASSY LIVdWI TYNSIA '8 3dVISANV "ZTOZ PUZZ 15N3NY UO PI1INPUOI SEM SIA 311S 3y |_W._
IN3ID Q.11 SININHOTIAIA IAISHILYM AVYNDYOL luawde|a43p udisap Jayliny Buimoljoj 3Bueyd o3 392igns aie yaym sjesodoad ssew Suipjing WP JUasaIda) saBew ay) // sayoN

4B UBLIBM WOJ) DS U3 SpJemol MIIA - (Z6SE9 L9T6Z XS “HON)

T65E9 LST6Z XS ‘HON) TEdA Buusix]

[T B




Agenda Iltem 5

Application Number Site Address

P/2015/0962 Torquay Pavilion And Marina Car Park And
Office And Adjoining Land
Vaughan Parade

Torquay
TQ2 5EL
Case Officer Ward
Mrs Ruth Robinson Tormohun

Description
Refurbishment of building including repairs to corroded structure and works to prevent

water penetration. Internal and external works to listed Pavilion to enable use as hotel
foyer, including function rooms, bars, restaurant and spa. Construction of linked access
from first floor level to proposed waterfront hotel (proposal revised 5 July 2016)

Executive Summary/Key Outcomes

The Pavilion is a Grade Il listed building prominent within the Torquay Harbour
Conservation Area. It was constructed as a theatre although it has been put to a range
of alternative uses since.

It was last used for retail purposes but been vacant for several years and is now in a
very poor condition

Its restoration and conversion to provide a front of house facility for the 60 bed hotel
included in the partner application P/2015/0961 would be considered a clear public
benefit of the wider development proposals.

The proposal includes repair and restoration of the building and use for hotel reception,
restaurants, bars, pool and spa.

The application relates only to the physical works to the building to facilitate the use for
hotel purposes and includes works to the listed quayside.

The removal of the retail units opens up the central auditorium in a more sympathetic
way and allows the original quality of this space to be better appreciated.

The use of the Pavilion for a front of house for the hotel is a good use for the building
and is ‘applauded’ by Historic England. It delivers a sustainable use that will guarantee
public access and secure its long term maintenance.

There are some practical and technical matters that require resolution which can largely

be dealt with by condition. The only matter of substance that should be dealt with in
advance of a decision being issued is confirmation that the ventilation and extract

Page 80



systems that the uses will demand can be sympathetically included.

Recommendation

That listed building consent be granted subject to a) the receipt of details which
demonstrate that the extract and ventilation requirements of the pool, spa and restaurant
uses within the building can be accommodated without harm to the internal character of
the building or to its external appearance and that the impact of warm humid air on the
stability of the plasterwork can be mitigated and b) to the following conditions.

e To secure an agreed and specified schedule of works to fully repair and restore
the Pavilion based on the submitted specialist engineers report and the schedule
of works and reinstatement included with the application drawings. The agreed
schedule of works to be implemented in full prior to any occupation of the
proposed flats included in the sister application P/2015/0961.

e Submission of a Conservation Management Plan to provide relevant detail with
regard to internal and external works of repair and reinstatement of key features
as secured in the schedule of works pursuant to condition 1 and as described in
the application drawings. This document to include large scale details as
appropriate of all works of repair and reinstatement of external and internal
features along with a timetable for delivery. It should also include measures to
deliver a 30 year maintenance programme.

e Details of all partitions showing final position and relationship to the internal
structure of the building and showing inclusion of glazed panels as appropriate to
maintain the open character of the main auditorium.

e Submission of a structural survey to confirm that the long term stability of the
quay side can be assured.

e Submission of a full photographic record of all key features along with any
exposed during conversion.

e Full details of the proposed relocation of the traditional bollards along the
quayside.

Statutory Determination Period
The statutory determination period expired on the 3rd August 2016. There is an
agreement to an extension of time in relation to the wider development.

Site Details

The Pavilion is a Grade Il listed building. It is prominent within the Torquay Harbour
Conservation Area and was constructed in 1911 on the newly reclaimed land of
Princess Gardens. It was designed to form a backdrop to the pleasure gardens. Its most
recent use was for retail purposes but it has been vacant for several years.

It was an innovative building at the time of its construction, conceived as a complete
steel frame from the foundations upwards. The steel frame was then built into the
external walls which were constructed of faience blocks and brickwork. The building now
suffers from severe water penetration which has led to the steel work becoming
corroded and damage to the faience tiles.

Page 81



It is now in a very poor condition and its restoration has been a key driver in pursuing
development proposals on the wider site. These are also for consideration today and
comprise the construction of a hotel and 43 flats on the harbour side with use of the
Pavilion as a front of house for the hotel, including a spa, bars and restaurants.

Detailed Proposals

This application relates to the physical works to the structure of the Pavilion to facilitate
its use as a front of house facility for the hotel and for works to the quay side to construct
the new hotel and flat complex on the listed quay walls. It also includes removal of the
existing bollards. A schedule of works to the building to achieve its restoration is
included but requires further detail and clarification.

Summary Of Consultation Responses

The Statutory consultees, which comprise Historic England, the Victorian Society,
Devon Garden History Society and the Theatres Trust have commented on the wider
redevelopment proposals for the site and only Historic England and the Theatres Trust
have commented specifically on the detail of the listed building application.

Historic England applaud the intention to provide a long term sustainable future for this
listed building but question the need to introduce further subdivision to separate the
restaurant, spa and hotel lobby. They would prefer the use of part solid divisions that
include glazed panels to better preserve the internal quality of the building. It is
suggested that this detail could be secured by condition.

The Theatres Trust raise significant concerns regarding the use of the southern end of
the building as a pool and spa facility particularly the impact of warm and humid air on
the stability of the internal plasterwork. They would encourage the enlargement of the
central void and question the location of function room doors. They question the design
of the bedroom bridge link and wish to see a condition imposed in the event that listed
building consent is granted to secure a full internal photographic record of the building.

The Victorian Society only comment that the harm of the wider development is not
outweighed by the benefit of proposals to secure the future of this listed building.

Summary Of Representations

Similarly in respect of representations, the majority of comments received relate to the
wider proposals for the site and few letters comment on the specifics of this particular
application.

The comments that have been made relate to the impact on the internal quality of the
building, on the character of the quay walls and whether they can withstand the impact
of construction works, the suitability of the building for the proposed use and the impact
of the bedroom link on the architectural and historic character of the listed building.

Relevant Planning History
This application is partnered with P/2015/0961 which deals with the planning aspects of

Page 82



this proposal.

The history of its inclusion within wider development proposals for the site is explained
in the accompanying planning report.

Its most recent use was for retail purposes.

Key Issues/Material Considerations
In terms of policy and principle, s 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation
Areas) Act 1990 imposes a duty on LPAs to give considerable weight and importance to
the desirability of preserving listed buildings and any features of special architectural or
historic interest and their the settings.

Paragraphs 131-134 in the NPPF and Policy HE1 in the Adopted Local Plan translate
this statutory position to national and local planning guidance.

The key issues are the impact of the conversion to hotel use on the internal quality of
the building, the impact of the spa use on the internal layout and on plasterwork, the
impact of ventilation and extract systems, the adaptation of the eastern facade to
accommodate the bedroom link, the scale of restoration work and the impact of
construction on the quayside.

Each matter will be addressed in turn.

1. The impact of the change of use on the internal quality of the listed
building.

The internal character of the building is compromised by the works carried out in
converting the Pavilion to retail use in the 1980’s. These will largely be removed and
there will be a greater ability to read original form and quality of the central auditorium.

Historic England have questioned the need for some of the proposed partitioning but
have suggested this matter could be resolved via a condition to ensure that where
partitioning is shown to be necessary it could be mitigated by the inclusion of glazed
panels. It is thought this represents an appropriate way forward in terms of ensuring that
the character of the space is preserved.

2. The location of the pool and spa and impact on the internal
plasterwork.

The pool and spa are proposed to be located in the southern end of the building. This
location does impede access through the building to a public space to be located
between the Pavilion and the Promenade. However, it is an important facility within the
hotel offer and there are limited alternatives available.

What is of more concern is the potential impact on the elaborate internal plasterwork
from the humid atmosphere.

Page 83



This could be remedied through appropriate extraction and ventilation systems being in
place but this would obvious impacts on both the internal character of the building and
on its external appearance if it demands external vents. This aspect of the scheme does
need further consideration.

3. Impact of extract and ventilation systems on the internal and external
character of the building.

The inclusion of restaurant and spa uses will require the inclusion of appropriate extract
and ventilation systems. These could have quite a profound effect on the internal and
external quality of the building.

Despite requests a full M&E study has not been carried out to enable a proper
understanding of what this would mean for the architectural and historic character of the
building. Whilst some additional information has been made available more recently, this
shows where the expected plant will be located but does not clarify what impact this will
have on the internal or external qualities of the building.

Clearly there needs to be a balance between protecting the listed building and ensuring
that uses can function within the building which will give it a sustainable future. It is likely
that an appropriate solution can be found but it may be expensive if the impact on the
listed building is to be minimised.

It is therefore recommended that some evidence is supplied prior to the decision being
issued to show that the inclusion of the restaurant and spa uses can be dealt with in a
way that protects the internal features of the building and does not harm the external
appearance of the building.

4. The adaptation of the eastern facade to accommodate the bedroom
link.

All that requires listed building consent is the works to the eastern facade to
accommodate the bedroom link to the proposed hotel on the harbour side. The bedroom
link itself requires planning permission and it is through this process that its impact on
the setting of listed building is evaluated.

This facade is not original and dates from the 1980s when the proposal to use the
Pavilion for retail purposes was implemented. The creation of an opening in the
structure to accommodate the link in this more modern part of the building does not
harm the integrity of the listed building.

5. The scale and quality of restoration work.

This broadly falls into two categories, the works required to achieve the buildings long
term structural stability and the works required to restore its internal and external quality.

Page 84



In respect of the former, the works that are required to prevent continued corrosion of
the steel framework are detailed in a specialist structural survey and this needs to be
translated into an agreed schedule of works.

In respect of the latter, detailed plans have been supplied as part of the listed building
application which demonstrates a sympathetic reinstatement of lost and degraded
features.

Again, this needs translating into a schedule of works so that delivery can be
guaranteed. These matters can be dealt with by condition.

6. The impact of construction on the listed quayside.

Concerns have been expressed about the impact of construction on the possibly fragile
listed quayside and the impact of the new harbour side walkway on the architectural and
historic character of the quayside through the removal of the traditional bollards and
extension of the timber walkway over the harbour edge thus obscuring the robust quay
stones.

In terms of structural stability, this matter has been investigated by specialist engineers
Ove Arup who were consultants when the car park was constructed in the 1980’s. The
construction of the existing MDL car park necessitated pile foundations and it is these
which will largely be re-used in the proposed redevelopment.

Despite requests, a copy of this report has not been submitted but can be required by
condition.

In terms of the loss of bollards and the impact on the listed quay side, an option has
been put to the applicant which could help mitigate this harm.

This suggestion is fully detailed in the accompanying planning application and involves
relocating the bollards to the southern quay of the harbour and introducing a more
cohesive contemporary edge to the quayside alongside the development site and
marrying up to the new bridge.

Whilst agreement has been reached on this detail is limited and further information is
required.

S106/CIL -
All S106 matters are picked up in the accompanying planning application.

Conclusions

The use of the Pavilion for a front of house for the hotel is a good use for the building
and is ‘applauded’ by Historic England. It delivers a sustainable use that will guarantee
public access and secure its long term maintenance. There are some practical and
technical matters that require resolution which can largely be dealt with by condition.
The only matter of substance that should be dealt with in advance of a decision being

Page 85



issued is confirmation that the ventilation and extract systems that the uses will demand
can be sympathetically included.

Recommendation

That listed building consent be granted subject to a) receipt of details which confirm that
the extract and ventilation requirements of the pool, spa and restaurant uses within the
building can be accommodated without harm to the internal character of the building or
to its external appearance and that the impact of warm humid air on the stability of the
plasterwork can be mitigated and b) to the following conditions.

To secure an agreed and specified schedule of works to fully repair and restore
the Pavilion based on the submitted specialist engineers report and the schedule
of works and reinstatement included with the application drawings. The agreed
schedule of works to be implemented in full prior to any occupation of the
proposed flats included in the sister application P/2015/0961.

Submission of a Conservation Management Plan to provide relevant detail with
regard to internal and external works of repair, reinstatement of key features. This
document to include large scale details as appropriate of all works of repair and
reinstatement of external and internal features along with a timetable for delivery.
It should also include measures to deliver a 30 year maintenance programme.
Details of all partitions showing final position and relationship to the internal
structure of the building and showing inclusion of glazed panels as appropriate to
maintain the open character of the main auditorium.

Submission of a structural survey to confirm that the long term stability of the
quay side can be assured.

Submission of a full photographic record of all key features along with any
exposed during conversion.

Full details of the proposed relocation of the traditional bollards along the
quayside.

Relevant Policies

Page 86



	Agenda
	4 Torquay Pavilion, Marina Car Park and Office and adjoining land, Vaughan Parade, Torquay - P/2015/0961/MPA
	Appendix to Main Report (Viewpoints LVIA Pavilion)

	5 Torquay Pavilion, Marina Car Park and office and adjoining land, Vaughan Parade, Torquay - 2015/0962/LB

